
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

506 W. St. Charles, Street San Andreas, CA 95249 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING: 3:00 PM 
February 8, 2022 

 
President J.W. Dell ‘Orto  
President of the Board 

 
Director Richard Blood     Director Brady McCartney 
Director Jack Tressler 
 

 
 

AGENDA 

 

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS 

a. President J.W. Dell ‘Orto 

b. Director Richard Blood 

c. Director Brady McCartney 

d. Director Jack Tressler 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Limit: 3 min/person) 

At this time, members of the public may address the Board on any matter within its 

jurisdiction which is not on the agenda.  The public is encouraged to work with staff to 

Calaveras Public Utility District hereby provides notice that it will convene its regularly 

scheduled public meetings of the Board of Directors at the District Office. No attendance will 

be permitted by the public at the District office until further notice. 
 

• Join the Conference Call meeting 

• Dial-in number (US): 1(669)900-9128 

• Join the online ZOOM meeting:   
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81514083058?pwd=UWdBT0FOMHlQRlBzQUNtZnZVcHdE

UT09   
• Meeting ID: 815 1408 3058 

• Meeting Passcode code: 075725 

 

 Please mute your call before joining.  This will limit technical difficulties with audio. 

Only unmute your call if the President has requested public comment on an item.  Upon completing 

your comments, please mute your call again.  Do not put the call on hold, as hold music can ruin the 

call for all other participants.  If that occurs, or in the event of disruptive conduct, staff reserves the 

right to disconnect that caller.  Do no talk over the top of any other callers.  Conversations must be 

one at a time. 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81514083058?pwd=UWdBT0FOMHlQRlBzQUNtZnZVcHdEUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81514083058?pwd=UWdBT0FOMHlQRlBzQUNtZnZVcHdEUT09


 

Page 2 of 3 
 

place items on the agenda for Board consideration.  No action can be taken on matters 

not listed on the agenda.  Comments are limited to 3 minutes per person. 

 

5. RESOLUTION NO. 2022-5: A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A 

LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS, RE-RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION 

OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY THE GOVERNOR ON MARCH 4, 2020, 

AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

FOR THE PERIOD FEBRUARY 8, 2022 TO MARCH 8, 2022 PURSUANT TO 

BROWN ACT PROVISIONS.  

 

Action Requested: Roll Call Vote  

Approval of Resolution No. 2022-5 Declaring and Re-ratifying the State of Emergency 

and Authorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Board of Directors Due to the 

Covid-19 Emergency. 

 

6. CONSENT ITEMS 

Consent items should be considered together as one motion.  Any item(s) requested to be removed 

will be considered after the motion to approve the Consent Items. 

 

a. Minutes of Regular Board meeting of January 11, 2022 

b. Minutes of Special Board meeting of January 25, 2022 

c. Claim Summary 

 

Action: Roll call Vote 

Consider motion to approve consent items for items a-b. 

 

ITEMS FOR BOARD DISCUSSION AND/OR ACTION 

Board action may occur on any identified agenda item. Any member of the public may 

directly address the Board on any identified agenda item of interest, either before or 

during the Board's consideration of that item. 

 

7. CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT WATER RIGHTS COMPLIANCE 

AND HYDROPOWER GENERATING EVALUATION 

 

 Action Requested: No Action 

Overview of the Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower Generating Evaluation 
presented by Jeffrey Meyer with Western Hydrologics.  

  



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

8. PRESIDENT’S SPECIAL RECOGNITION AWARD 

 

Action Requested: No Action 

ACWA/JPIA recognizes Calaveras Public Utility District with President’s Special 

Recognition Awards for the Worker’s Compensation Program and the Liability Program. 

9. CONSIDERATION TO MOVE APRIL BOARD MEETING  

 

Action Requested: Roll Call Vote 

a. Approve moving April 12, 2022 Board Meeting to April 19, 2022 Board Meeting.  

10. REPORTS 

The purpose of these reports is to provide information on projects, programs, staff 

actions, and committee meetings that are of general interest to the Board and public.  No 

decisions are to be made on these issues. 

a. Legal Counsel’s Report 

b. Water System Superintendent’s Report 

c. District Engineer Report/Clearwell Project Update 

d. General Manager’s Report 

e. Director’s Comments:  Directors may make brief announcements or brief reports 

on their own activities.  They may ask questions for clarification, make a referral 

to staff or take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda. 

 

11. ADJOURNMENT  

If there is no other Board business the President will adjourn to its next regular meeting 

scheduled for March 8, 2022, at 3:00 p.m. 

 

 

 
 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this 
meeting, please contact the Office at (209) 754-9442. Notification in advance of the meeting will enable 

CPUD to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Any documents that are 
made available to the Board before or at the meeting, not privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure, 

and related to agenda items, will be made available at CPUD for review by the public. 
 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-5 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CALAVERAS PUBLIC 

UTILITY DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS, 

RERATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY THE 

GOVERNOR ON MARCH 4, 2020, AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE 

TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD FEBRUARY 8, 2022 

TO MARCH 8, 2022 PURSUANT TO BROWN ACT PROVISIONS. 

WHEREAS, the Calaveras Public Utility District (the “District”) is committed to preserving and 

nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors; and 

 

WHEREAS, all meetings of the District’s Board of Directors are open and public, as required by 

the Ralph M. Brown Act (Cal. Gov. Code 54950 – 54963), so that any member of the public may 

attend, participate, and watch the District’s Board of Directors conduct their business; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provision for remote 

teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance 

with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of 

certain conditions; and 

 

WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor 

pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster 

or of extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state caused by conditions as 

described in Government Code section 8558; and 

 

WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or 

extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are within the 

District’s boundaries, caused by natural, technological or human-caused disasters; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or recommended 

measures to promote social distancing, or, the legislative body meeting in person would present 

imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors previously adopted a Resolution, Number 2021-10 on 

September 27, 2021, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the District’s Board of 

Directors to conduct remote teleconference meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of 

subdivision (b) of section 54953; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in section 54953(e), the 

Board of Directors must reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency that exists in the 

District, and the Board of Directors has done so; and 

 

 

WHEREAS, emergency conditions persist in the District, specifically, the State of Emergency 



declared by the Governor on March 4, 2020 due to the Covid-19 pandemic; and 

 

WHEREAS, guidance from the State of California, which has been followed by the Calaveras 

County Department of Public Health, recommends or mandates social distancing and face 

coverings in certain settings to prevent the spread of Covid-19; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that that the rise in SARS-CoV-2 Delta 

Variant during the Covid-19 pandemic has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions 

dangerous to the safety of persons within the District that are likely to be beyond the control of 

services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the District, and desires to affirm a local 

emergency exists and re-ratify the proclamation of state of emergency by the Governor of the 

State of California; and 

 

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency persisting, the Board of Directors does 

hereby find that the Board of Directors of the District shall continue to conduct its meetings 

without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953, as 

authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such legislative bodies shall continue to 

comply with the requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings as prescribed in 

paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953; and 

 

WHEREAS, the District has implemented virtual meeting protocols which comply with the 

requirements of paragraph (2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953, by providing for public 

participation through online meeting attendance and the opportunity to provide comment during 

the Board meeting both verbally or via email. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CALAVERAS PUBLIC 

UTILITY DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated into this Resolution by this reference. 

 

Section 2. Affirmation that Local Emergency Persists. The Board of Directors hereby considers 

the conditions of the state of emergency in the District and proclaims that a local emergency 

persists throughout the District, and Covid-19 has caused, and will continue to cause, an 

unreasonable risk of harm to the safety of persons within the District that are likely to be beyond 

the control of the services, personnel, equipment and facilities of the District. 

 

Section 3. Re-ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The Board 

hereby ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of State of Emergency, 

effective as of its issuance date of March 4, 2021. 

 

Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager and Board of Directors are 

hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of 

this Resolution including, continuing to conduct open and public meetings in accordance with 

Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

 

Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately 



upon its adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) March 8, 2022, or such time 

as the Board of Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code 

section 54953(e)(3) to extend the time during which the Board of Directors of the District may 

continue to teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 

54953. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Calaveras Public Utility District this 

8th day of February 2022, by the following vote: 

 

 

 

 

 

AYES: 

 

NOES: 

 

ABSENT: 

 

ABSTAIN: 

 

 

Signed: _________________________________ 

J.W. Dell’Orto, President of the Board of Directors 

 

 

Attest: _________________________________ 

Carissa Bear, Secretary/Clerk of the Board 



 

 

CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT     January 11, 2022 

 

Regular Meeting        3:00 pm 

 

DIRECTORS PRESENT: J.W. Dell’Orto 

Richard Blood 

Brady McCartney 

Jack Tressler 

 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT: None 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Travis Small, General Manager 

Adam Brown, District Legal Counsel 

Carissa Bear, Clerk of the Board  

Mathew Roberts, Water System Superintendent  

Dani Bell, Customer Service Representative 

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  Craig Collins, Collins Accountancy Company 

  

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER: The regular meeting was called to order by President 

Dell’Orto at 3:03 P.M. 

 

2. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS: Directors Dell’Orto, Blood and Tressler were present. 

Director McCartney was absent.  

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Limit 3 minutes per person/15 minutes per subject): None 

 

5. STAFF INTRODUCTION 

General Manager, Travis Small introduced new District employee Dani Bell. Dani started at 

Calaveras Public Utility District on January 3, 2022. Everyone welcomed her to the team.  

6. CONSENT ITEMS  

a) Minutes of Regular Board Meeting of December 14, 2021 

b) Claim Summary  

President Dell’Orto asked for clarification on the Expenses by Vendor Detail regarding 

Director’s mileage. Carissa Bear, Clerk of the Board, explained that to the category was applied 

to the wrong general ledger account and that she would make the correction. President Dell’Orto 

inquired about a vendor not being on the list. Mrs. Bear clarified that the vendor was not paid in 

December and that the payment would appear on the January list. A motion was made by 

Director McCartney, seconded by Director Tressler, to approve Consent Items a-b. A roll call 

vote was taken. Directors Dell’Orto, Blood, McCartney and Tressler voted yes; none opposed. 

Motion carried 4-0. 

 



 

 

7. RESOLUTION NO. 2022-1: A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY 

PERSISTS, RE-RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY THE 

GOVERNOR ON MARCH 4, 2020, AND RE-AUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE 

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY 

DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD JANUARY 11, 2022 TO FEBRUARY 11,2022 PURSUANT TO 

BROWN ACT PROVISIONS.  

Adam Brown, District Legal Counsel, reminded the Board that the resolution was required to 

continue remote Board meetings. A motion was made by Director Blood, seconded by Director 

Tressler, to approve Resolution No. 2022-1. A roll call vote was taken. Directors Dell’Orto, 

Blood, McCartney and Tressler voted yes; non opposed. Motion carried 4-0 

 

8. BUDGET 

Travis Small, General Manager, gave an overview of the budget proposal. Director Blood asked for 

clarification regarding billing software. Mr. Small explained that the software he is considering will 

help integrate meter reading with the new billing software. The updated meter reading software will 

provide a strong foundation with room for growth in the future. The staff will be looking at all 

major meter companies and will make a decision as a group. Director Blood asked a question 

regarding the separate Wells Fargo Bank account for the Clearwell Tank Project. Mr. Small 

clarified. President Dell’Orto complimented Mr. Small for including the rate comparison from 

neighboring Districts to show how the District’s customer billing rates compared. Director Blood 

inquired about hiring of new staff. Mr. Small explained that he has put the current hiring proposal 

on hold and hopes to bring a new entry level position to the Board next month. Mr. Small asked for 

the Board’s input on how they would like him to move forward with the vehicle and equipment 

purchasing.  The Board collectively agreed that they would like Mr. Small to bring quotes back to 

the Board to decide together. The Board complimented Mr. Small on the budget he prepared and 

thanked Craig Collins with Collins Accountancy Company for his assistance.  A motion was made 

by Director Tressler, seconded by Director Blood, to approve Resolution 2022-2 Budget for Fiscal 

Year 2021/22. A roll call vote was taken. Directors Dell’Orto, Blood, McCartney and Tressler voted 

yes; non opposed. Motion carried 4-0.  

 

9. REPORTS 

a. Legal Counsel’s Report: 

No report.  

b. Board Vacancy Update: 

Mr. Small informed the Board that the District had received no applications for the vacant Board 

seat. He asked District Legal Counsel Adam Brown to explain the procedures for appointing a new 

Director at this stage. Mr. Brown explained to the Board that if an applicant comes forward that the 

appointment would have to be made by the Calaveras County Board of Supervisors.  

c. Water System Superintendent’s Report: 

Mathew Roberts, Water System Superintendent, went over the Monthly Maintenance Report. He 

updated the Board on the rain totals. Director Blood expressed his concern with the amount of water 

being used by the Schaads customer during winter months. Mr. Roberts discussed some of the leaks 

the crew repaired during December. Mr. Roberts reported that the crew reviewed 242 USAs. This is 

a large number especially for a small crew. At the time of the Board meeting the water rights were 

not curtailed.  

d. District Engineer Report/Clearwell Project Update 



 

 

Mr. Small gave an update on the Clearwell Tank Project on behalf of WGA. The project is currently 

delayed due to weather. The District Engineer’s office has been in contact with the contractors. The 

possibility of a change order has been discussed.  If a change order is needed, Mr. Small will bring 

it back to the Board for consideration at a future meeting. WGA has completed the Emergency 

Response Plan and staff has certified the report on the EPA’s self-service portal.  

e. General Manager’s Report:  

Mr. Small went over his report. He touched on COVID-19 Response Plan updates. The staff had 

some concerns with the existing plan.  He is working on updating the plan to meet current OSHA 

standards and the Calaveras County Public Health requirements.  

f. Director’s Comments: 

Director Blood reported on the Upper Mokelumne Rover Watershed Authority (UMWRA) MAC 

Plan meeting that he and Mr. Small attended. Calaveras Public Utility District has the chance of 

receiving a $500,000 grant for the backwash recycle project. At this time, the Calaveras Public 

Utility District is the only applicant. Director McCartney thanked Director Blood for his 

involvement. President Dell’Orto reported that he was happy with the Ad Hoc Finance Committee 

meeting. Mr. Small reminded Director Tressler that he replaced Director Speer for CPPA. Director 

Tressler and Mr. Small will attend the meeting together next week.  

10. ADJOURMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, President Dell’Orto adjourned the 

meeting at 4:24pm. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Carissa Bear, Clerk of the Board 



 

 

CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT     January 25, 2022 

 

Special Meeting        1:00 pm 

 

DIRECTORS PRESENT: J.W. Dell’Orto 

Richard Blood 

Jack Tressler 

Brady McCartney* 

 

MEMBERS ABSENT:   

 

 

STAFF PRESENT:  Travis Small, General Manager 

Adam Brown, District Legal Counsel 

Carissa Bear, Clerk of the Board  

Mathew Roberts, Water System Superintendent  

 

OTHERS PRESENT:  None 

  

1. CALL THE MEETING TO ORDER: The regular meeting was called to order by President 

Dell’Orto at 1:05 P.M. 

 

2. ROLL CALL OF DIRECTORS: Directors Dell’Orto, Blood, and Tressler were present. 

Director McCartney was absent.  

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Limit 3 minutes per person/15 minutes per subject): None 

 

5. RESOLUTION 2022-3:  VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT PURCHASE  

*Director McCartney entered the meeting at 1:24 pm.  

Travis Small, General Manager reviewed the quotes that he solicited for a new truck as well as a 

new hydrovac trailer. President Dell’Orto was pleased that the amounts quoted were lower than the 

budgeted amounts. Director Tressler inquired as to why there were no quotes for used vehicles and 

equipment, Mr. Small explained. Director Blood asked for clarification on some of the features for 

the hydrovac trailer, Mr. Small clarified. Director Blood asked if safety training will be done for the 

new equipment. Mr. Small informed the Board that there will be safety training as well the 

requirement of P.P.E. Mr. Tressler expressed his dissatisfaction with the quotes that were provided 

and informed the Board and Mr. Small that he would like to see more quotes presented. He believes 

that the District could save more money if they took their time. Mr. Small reminded the Board that 

the quotes are all well within the budget that was already approved at the last Board meeting. 

Director Blood agreed with Mr. Small’s statement and also expressed his concern with the life 

expectancy of used equipment. Director McCartney would like to see the crew getting equipment 

that will last and that will make their job more efficient. A motion was made by Director Blood, 

seconded by Director McCartney, to approve Resolution 2022-3 Authorizing the General Manager 

to Purchase a Light Duty Dump Truck and Hydrovac Trailer. Director Tressler asked that Mr. Small 

negotiate the installation of a light bar and some flashers. Mr. Small responded that he would see 



 

 

what he could do. A roll call vote was taken. Directors Dell’Orto, Blood and McCartney, voted yes; 

Director Tressler voted no. Motion carried 3-1.  

 

6. RESOLUTION 2022-4:  COVID-19 RESPONSE PLAN 

Mr. Small explained that under Cal/OSHA’s regulations, employee pay, and benefits cannot be 

docked due to COVID. Mr. Small has looked at other agencies’ practices and has determined that 

this is becoming more common. This is a voluntary fund, and it is budget-neutral. This will give the 

District a way to track the sick time used for COVID in the case that more COVID related funding 

comes available. This will also help keep the District’s workman’s’ comp numbers down due to not 

having to file workman’s comp claims for workplace exposures. Adam Brown, District Legal 

Counsel, explained that if an employee is exposed or has tested positive, the burden will be placed 

on the employer to determine whether the source was in the workplace or from an unrelated cause. 

He has reviewed the policy and made the appropriate changes. Director McCartney stated that other 

local districts have already implemented it. President Dell’Orto thinks it’s great to get ahead of this 

issue. A motion was made by Director Blood, seconded by Director Tressler, to approve Resolution 

2022-4:  Extended Public Health Emergency Paid Sick Leave (EPSL) Policy. A roll call vote was 

taken. Directors Dell’Orto, Blood, McCartney and Tressler voted yes; none opposed. Motion 

carried 4-0.  

 

7. ADJOURMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, President Dell’Orto adjourned the 

meeting at 2:05pm. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Carissa Bear, Clerk of the Board 



CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 
 

CLAIM SUMMARY #____760____ 
 

DATE: ___January 2022 
 

 
 
The claims listed on the schedules attached to this summary have been 
examined and found to be correct and proper demands against the Calaveras 
Public Utility District. 
 
 

 

Claims Submitted $129,425.61 

Payroll Submitted $ 50,320.85 

P/R Tax Deposits $ 23,002.26 

  

Sub-total $ 202,748.72 

 
 

Net Additions  

Net Deductions  

Claim Summary 
Approved for 

$ 202,748.72 

 
   

 
 

 
 
 

 
__________________________________________ 

Clerk of the Board, Calaveras Public Utility District 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 January 2022

Name Type Date Num Memo Account Amount Balance

ACWA-Health

Check 01/07/2022 23496 February Dental & Vision 5643 · Medical Insurance 1,638.89 1,638.89

Total ACWA-Health 1,638.89 1,638.89

Alpha Analytical Labs, Inc.

Check 01/07/2022 23497 Lab Fees 5323 · Lab Fees 395.00 395.00

Total Alpha Analytical Labs, Inc. 395.00 395.00

AT & T

Check 01/07/2022 23499 Phone for Hydro #3 Garamendi 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 66.23 66.23

Check 01/25/2022 23532 Shop Internet & Phone 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 89.48 155.71

Check 01/25/2022 23533 209-754-1920 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 197.82 353.53

Check 01/25/2022 23533 209-286-1502 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 199.69 553.22

Check 01/25/2022 23533 209-841-5235 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 33.34 586.56

Check 01/25/2022 23533 234-351-0095 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 54.77 641.33

Check 01/25/2022 23556 Hydro #3 Garamendi 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 64.19 705.52

Check 01/07/2022 23498 Phone/Internet for Shop 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 90.24 795.76

Total AT&T 795.76 795.76

Blood, Richard

Check 01/07/2022 23500 Regular Board Meeting 1/11/22 5680 · Director's Fees 100.00 100.00

Total Blood, Richard 100.00 100.00

Brady McCartney

Check 01/07/2022 23512 CPUD Regular Meeting 11/9/2021 5680 · Director's Fees 25.00 25.00

Check 01/07/2022 23512 CPUD Regular Meeting 1/11/2022 5680 · Director's Fees 100.00 125.00

Total Brady McCartney 125.00 125.00

Calaveras Enterprise

Check 01/25/2022 23534 CSR Classified 5683 · Dues, Subscriptions, Fees 257.04 257.04

Check 01/25/2022 23534 WDTO Classified 5426 · T & D Fees & Permits 586.62 843.66

Total Calaveras Enterprise 843.66 843.66

Calaveras Power Agency

Check 01/25/2022 23535 CPUD Warehouse 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 54.04 54.04

Check 01/25/2022 23535 Glencoe Booster Pump 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 150.61 204.65

Check 01/25/2022 23535 CPUD Office 5621 · Office Utilities 122.80 327.45

Check 01/25/2022 23535 Jeff Davis WTP 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 634.00 961.45

Check 01/25/2022 23535 Licking Fork Pumping Station 5230 · Utilitites Pumping Power 7,402.00 8,363.45

Total Calaveras Power Agency 8,363.45 8,363.45

Carbon Copy Inc.

Check 01/07/2022 23501 Printer/Copier Contract 5623 · Contract Services 74.09 74.09

Total Carbon Copy Inc. 74.09 74.09

Comcast

Check 01/07/2022 23502 Office Utilities 5621 · Office Utilities 287.79 287.79

Check 01/25/2022 23536 Office Phone & Internet 5620 · Materials & Supplies 299.66 587.45

Total Comcast 587.45 587.45

 Page 1 of 6



 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 January 2022

Name Type Date Num Memo Account Amount Balance

Computer Firemen

Check 01/25/2022 23537 IT for CPUD Office and Shop 5623 · Contract Services 700.00 700.00

Total Computer Firemen 700.00 700.00

Datco Billing

Check 01/07/2022 23503 Contract Services 5422 · T & D Contract Services 51.00 51.00

Total Datco Billing 51.00 51.00

De Lage Landen Financial Services Inc.

Check 01/07/2022 23505 Printer/Copier Contract 5623 · Contract Services 87.85 87.85

Check 01/25/2022 23538 Kyocera 5623 · Contract Services 87.85 175.70

Total De Lage Landen Financial Services Inc. 175.70 175.70

Dell'Orto, J.W.

Check 01/07/2022 23504 CAMRA Meeting 11/17/2021 5680 · Director's Fees 100.00 100.00

Check 01/07/2022 23504 Finance AdHOC Meeting 5680 · Director's Fees 100.00 200.00

Check 01/07/2022 23504 CPUD Regular Board Meeting 5680 · Director's Fees 100.00 300.00

Total Dell'Orto, J.W. 300.00 300.00

ERS Industrial Services, Inc.

Check 01/25/2022 23539 Elliptical Covers, Labor and Equipment 5322 · Water Treatment Supplies 11,650.00 11,650.00

Total ERS Industrial Services, Inc. 11,650.00 11,650.00

Fischer, Merle

Check 01/07/2022 23506 January Retirement Reimb. 5647 · OPEB - Retirement 765.23 765.23

Total Fischer, Merle 765.23 765.23

GEI Consultants, Inc.

Check 01/25/2022 23540 Chief Dam Safety Engineer Services Invoice 3102747 5623 · Contract Services 3,267.00 3,267.00

Check 01/25/2022 23540 Chief Dam Safety Engineer Services Invoice 3101756 5623 · Contract Services 1,485.00 4,752.00

Total GEI Consultants, Inc. 4,752.00 4,752.00

Grainger

Check 01/25/2022 23541 Shop Tool 5421 · T & D Maint. Mat. & Supp. 30.20 30.20

Check 01/25/2022 23541 Shop Tool 5421 · T & D Maint. Mat. & Supp. 15.18 45.38

Check 01/25/2022 23541 Shop Parts 5421 · T & D Maint. Mat. & Supp. 98.29 143.67

Check 01/25/2022 23541 WT Supplies 5322 · Water Treatment Supplies 146.65 290.32

Total Grainger 290.32 290.32

Granite Data Solutions

Check 01/25/2022 23557 Acrobat Pro DC Subscription 5683 · Dues, Subscriptions, Fees 450.00 450.00

Total Granite Data Solutions 450.00 450.00

Hill Rivkins Brown & Associates

Check 01/25/2022 23542 Legal Fees 5682 · Audit & Legal 5,428.00 5,428.00

Total Hill Rivkins Brown & Associates 5,428.00 5,428.00

Hobgood's Cleaning Service

Check 01/07/2022 23507 Janitorial Services 5623 · Contract Services 160.00 160.00

Check 01/25/2022 23543 Janitorial Services January 2022 5623 · Contract Services 160.00 320.00

Total Hobgood's Cleaning Service 320.00 320.00

 Page 2 of 6



 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 January 2022

Name Type Date Num Memo Account Amount Balance

Hunt & Sons Inc.

Check 01/07/2022 23508 Fuel for District Vehicles 5424 · T & D Equip. Repair & Oper. 928.08 928.08

Check 01/25/2022 23544 Fuel Cards 5424 · T & D Equip. Repair & Oper. 1,574.33 2,502.41

Total Hunt & Sons Inc. 2,502.41 2,502.41

Jackson Tire

Check 01/07/2022 23509 Tires for Truck # 008/2018 Ford F-150 5424 · T & D Equip. Repair & Oper. 1,114.19 1,114.19

Total Jackson Tire 1,114.19 1,114.19

Ledger-Dispatch

Check 01/07/2022 23510 Advertisement for  Field Crew Vacancy 5426 · T & D Fees & Permits 114.75 114.75

Total Ledger-Dispatch 114.75 114.75

Lowe's

Check 01/25/2022 23545 WTP Crystals 5322 · Water Treatment Supplies 1,864.69 1,864.69

Total Lowe's 1,864.69 1,864.69

Matrix Trust Company

Check 01/07/2022 23511 457 Plan Pay Period 12/15/21 2317 · 457 Plan 300.00 300.00

Check 01/07/2022 23511 457 Plan Pay Period 12/31/21 2317 · 457 Plan 300.00 600.00

Total Matrix Trust Company 600.00 600.00

McMaster-Carr

Check 01/07/2022 23513 WTP Materials & Supplies 5322 · Water Treatment Supplies 420.17 420.17

Check 01/25/2022 23546 Paloma Tank Supplies 5421 · T & D Maint. Mat. & Supp. 147.07 567.24

Total McMaster-Carr 567.24 567.24

Motherlode Answering Service

Check 01/25/2022 23547 Invoice 18511 5623 · Contract Services 295.48 295.48

Total Motherlode Answering Service 295.48 295.48

Pace Supply

Check 01/07/2022 23514 Quartely Inventory 5421 · T & D Maint. Mat. & Supp. 4,104.78 4,104.78

Total Pace Supply 4,104.78 4,104.78

Petty Cash

Check 01/07/2022 23515 Return Address Notifications 5622 · Postage & Box Rent 47.55 47.55

Check 01/07/2022 23515 Rock Creek Landfill 5421 · T & D Maint. Mat. & Supp. 20.00 67.55

Check 01/07/2022 23515 Staff Meeting 5429 · T & D Safety & Education 18.96 86.51

Total Petty Cash 86.51 86.51

PG&E - ENERGY STATEMENT

Check 01/07/2022 23516 MCV Hydro #2 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 82.26 82.26

Check 01/07/2022 23516 Garamendi's Hydro #3 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 181.43 263.69

Check 01/07/2022 23516 Ponderosa Hydro #1 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 153.13 416.82

Check 01/07/2022 23516 Office 5621 · Office Utilities 236.80 653.62

Check 01/07/2022 23516 Schaads 5201 · Schaads Hydro Cost 56.54 710.16

Check 01/07/2022 23516 Golden Hills Tank 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 9.43 719.59

Check 01/07/2022 23516 Warehouse Light 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 11.82 731.41

Check 01/07/2022 23516 Warehouse Light 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 11.82 743.23

 Page 3 of 6



 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 January 2022

Name Type Date Num Memo Account Amount Balance

Check 01/07/2022 23516 Moke Hill Tank 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 9.86 753.09

Check 01/25/2022 23549 Hwy 26 Site #2 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 74.19 827.28

Check 01/25/2022 23549 Hwy 49 Chili Gulch 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 178.28 1,005.56

Check 01/25/2022 23549 Hwy 26 & Ponderosa Way 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 149.94 1,155.50

Total PG&E - ENERGY STATEMENT 1,155.50 1,155.50

PGE-NON ENERGY INVOICES

Check 01/07/2022 23517 Hydro #2 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 7.75 7.75

Check 01/07/2022 23517 Hydro #3 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 7.75 15.50

Check 01/07/2022 23517 Hydro #1 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 7.75 23.25

Check 01/07/2022 23517 Schaads Reservoir 5201 · Schaads Hydro Cost 214.01 237.26

Check 01/25/2022 23548 Schaads Hydro 5201 · Schaads Hydro Cost 197.86 435.12

Check 01/25/2022 23548 Hydro 1 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 7.75 442.87

Check 01/25/2022 23548 Hydro 2 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 7.75 450.62

Check 01/25/2022 23548 Hydro 3 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 7.75 458.37

Total PGE-NON ENERGY INVOICES 458.37 458.37

Postmaster

Check 01/07/2022 23518 Annual Permit Fee 5622 · Postage & Box Rent 265.00 265.00

Check 01/07/2022 23530 January Postage 5622 · Postage & Box Rent 700.00 965.00

Check 01/07/2022 23531 Return Address Notifications 5622 · Postage & Box Rent 50.00 1,015.00

Total Postmaster 1,015.00 1,015.00

RVS Software

Check 01/25/2022 23558 Acct# 3242 5621 · Office Utilities 491.98 491.98

Total RVS Software 491.98 491.98

San Andreas Sanitary District

Check 01/07/2022 23519 Sewer Services 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 97.04 97.04

Check 01/07/2022 23519 Sewer Services 5621 · Office Utilities 97.04 194.08

Total San Andreas Sanitary District 194.08 194.08

Sender's Market Inc.

Check 01/07/2022 23521 Office Projects 5421 · T & D Maint. Mat. & Supp. 91.68 91.68

Total Sender's Market Inc. 91.68 91.68

SEIU Local 1021

Check 01/07/2022 23520 Pay Period Ending 12/15/21 2322 · SEIU Union Dues 426.14 426.14

Check 01/07/2022 23520 Pay Period Ending 12/31/21 2322 · SEIU Union Dues 423.04 849.18

Total SEIU Local 1021 849.18 849.18

Sonora Ford

Check 01/25/2022 23550 Ford Super Duty F250 5424 · T & D Equip. Repair & Oper. 248.95 248.95

Check 01/25/2022 23550 Ford F-150 5424 · T & D Equip. Repair & Oper. 189.24 438.19

Total Sonora Ford 438.19 438.19

Staples Credit Plan

Check 01/07/2022 23522 6035517820757168 5620 · Materials & Supplies 1,369.73 1,369.73

Total Staples Credit Plan 1,369.73 1,369.73

 Page 4 of 6



 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 January 2022

Name Type Date Num Memo Account Amount Balance

State Water Resources Control Board

Check 01/25/2022 23552 Annual Permit Fee 5426 · T & D Fees & Permits 763.00 763.00

Total State Water Resources Control Board 763.00 763.00

SWRCB ACCOUNTING OFFICE

Check 01/25/2022 23559 Water system annual fee 5426 · T & D Fees & Permits 5,270.68 5,270.68

Total SWRCB ACCOUNTING OFFICE 5,270.68 5,270.68

Treat's General Store

Check 01/07/2022 23523 WTP 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 49.80 49.80

Check 01/07/2022 23523 Truck 009 5424 · T & D Equip. Repair & Oper. 61.12 110.92

Check 01/07/2022 23523 Materials & Supplies 5421 · T & D Maint. Mat. & Supp. 97.49 208.41

Total Treat's General Store 208.41 208.41

Tressler, Jack

Check 01/07/2022 23524 AdHoc Meeting 01/05/22 5680 · Director's Fees 100.00 100.00

Check 01/07/2022 23524 CPUD Regular Meeting 5680 · Director's Fees 100.00 200.00

Total Tressler, Jack 200.00 200.00

Union Democrat

Check 01/25/2022 23551 Advertisement 5426 · T & D Fees & Permits 819.82 819.82

Total Union Democrat 819.82 819.82

Verizon Wireless

Check 01/07/2022 23525 Employee Cell Service 5432 · T & D Misc. Maint. Utilities 812.03 812.03

Total Verizon Wireless 812.03 812.03

Volcano Telephone

Check 01/07/2022 23526 Treatment Plant 5322 · Water Treatment Supplies 72.42 72.42

Check 01/07/2022 23526 Hydro #1 Ponderosa 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 56.14 128.56

Check 01/07/2022 23526 Pump Station 5230 · Utilitites Pumping Power 56.14 184.70

Check 01/07/2022 23526 Treatment Plant 5322 · Water Treatment Supplies 56.14 240.84

Check 01/07/2022 23526 Water Treatment Plant 5322 · Water Treatment Supplies 113.90 354.74

Check 01/07/2022 23526 Water Treatment Plant 5322 · Water Treatment Supplies 52.64 407.38

Check 01/07/2022 23526 Hydro #2 MCV 5200 · Pipeline Hydro Cost 56.14 463.52

Check 01/07/2022 23526 Schaads Hydro 5201 · Schaads Hydro Cost 56.14 519.66

Check 01/07/2022 23526 Schaads Hydro 5201 · Schaads Hydro Cost 100.52 620.18

Total Volcano Telephone 620.18 620.18

Weber, Ghio & Associates

Check 01/07/2022 23529 Invoice # 2528 General Engineering Services 5684 · Engineering-Admin. 5,536.50 5,536.50

Check 01/07/2022 23529 Invoice # 2528-005 RRA & ERP Update 5684 · Engineering-Admin. 855.00 6,391.50

Check 01/07/2022 23529 Invoice # 2528-007 Asset Mapping Assistance 5684 · Engineering-Admin. 2,223.00 8,614.50

Check 01/07/2022 23529 Invoice #2813 Water Loss Control Program 5684 · Engineering-Admin. 1,197.00 9,811.50

Check 01/07/2022 23529 Invoice #2927 Water Model 5684 · Engineering-Admin. 1,075.75 10,887.25

Check 01/07/2022 23529 Invoice #2813 CIP Document 5684 · Engineering-Admin. 513.00 11,400.25

Check 01/07/2022 23529 Invoice #2873-001A  Clearwell Tank Project Enviromental 1190 · Construction in Progress 782.15 12,182.40

Check 01/07/2022 23529 Invoice #2873-003 Clearwell Tank Project Phase 1 Construction Management 1190 · Construction in Progress 11,777.20 23,959.60

 Page 5 of 6



 Calaveras Public Utility District

 Expenses by Vendor Detail
 January 2022

Name Type Date Num Memo Account Amount Balance

Check 01/07/2022 23529 Invoice # 2873-004 Clearwell Tank Project Phase 2 Construction Management 1190 · Construction in Progress 11,240.82 35,200.42

Check 01/25/2022 23553  2528 General Engineering Services 5684 · Engineering-Admin. 1,214.25 36,414.67

Check 01/25/2022 23553  2528-005 RRA & ERP Update 5684 · Engineering-Admin. 3,391.50 39,806.17

Check 01/25/2022 23553 2798 SRF Application 5684 · Engineering-Admin. 285.00 40,091.17

Check 01/25/2022 23553 2813 Water Loss Control Program 5684 · Engineering-Admin. 399.00 40,490.17

Check 01/25/2022 23553 2873 - 003 Phase I Clearwell Tank Project Const. Mgmt 1190 · Construction in Progress 2,969.31 43,459.48

Check 01/25/2022 23553 2873-004 Phase II Clearwell Tank Project Const. Mgmt 1190 · Construction in Progress 17,293.20 60,752.68

Total Weber, Ghio & Associates 60,752.68 60,752.68

Wells Fargo Bank - C. Bear

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5429 · T & D Safety & Education 17.64 17.64

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5429 · T & D Safety & Education 63.68 81.32

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5620 · Materials & Supplies 60.02 141.34

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5620 · Materials & Supplies 424.41 565.75

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5683 · Dues, Subscriptions, Fees 80.00 645.75

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5622 · Postage & Box Rent 100.00 745.75

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5620 · Materials & Supplies 971.61 1,717.36

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5620 · Materials & Supplies 83.88 1,801.24

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5620 · Materials & Supplies 83.88 1,885.12

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5620 · Materials & Supplies 45.04 1,930.16

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5620 · Materials & Supplies 130.80 2,060.96

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5683 · Dues, Subscriptions, Fees 191.98 2,252.94

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5429 · T & D Safety & Education 33.39 2,286.33

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5683 · Dues, Subscriptions, Fees 166.32 2,452.65

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5620 · Materials & Supplies 1,071.07 3,523.72

Check 01/07/2022 23527 Acct # 5586-6803-0022-2346 5620 · Materials & Supplies 44.56 3,568.28

Check 01/25/2022 23554 5421 · T & D Maint. Mat. & Supp. 110.44 3,678.72

Check 01/25/2022 23554 5620 · Materials & Supplies 12.86 3,691.58

Check 01/25/2022 23554 5683 · Dues, Subscriptions, Fees 179.88 3,871.46

Check 01/25/2022 23554 5620 · Materials & Supplies 34.27 3,905.73

Check 01/25/2022 23554 5620 · Materials & Supplies 41.50 3,947.23

Check 01/25/2022 23554 5622 · Postage & Box Rent 100.00 4,047.23

Check 01/25/2022 23554 5683 · Dues, Subscriptions, Fees 80.00 4,127.23

Check 01/25/2022 23554 5683 · Dues, Subscriptions, Fees 16.23 4,143.46

Check 01/25/2022 23554 5429 · T & D Safety & Education 198.41 4,341.87

Total Wells Fargo Bank - C. Bear 4,341.87 4,341.87

Wells Fargo Bank - M Roberts

Check 01/07/2022 23528 Acct # 5586 6803 0021 0457 5429 · T & D Safety & Education 164.33 164.33

Check 01/07/2022 23528 Acct # 5586 6803 0021 0457 5429 · T & D Safety & Education 166.46 330.79

Check 01/07/2022 23528 Acct # 5586 6803 0021 0457 5620 · Materials & Supplies 146.08 476.87

Check 01/25/2022 23555 5429 · T & D Safety & Education 40.76 517.63

Total Wells Fargo Bank - M Roberts 517.63 517.63

129,425.61 129,425.61

 Page 6 of 6



 

 

 

 
Calaveras Public Utility District  

Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

Calaveras County, California 

 

Prepared For: 

 

 

Prepared By: 

                     

 

January 2022 

Henwood Associates, Inc. 



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

2 
January 2021 

 

Table of Contents 
1.0 Introduction ............................................................................................................. 3 
2.0 CPUD Water Rights ................................................................................................... 3 

2.1 May 8, 1940 Agreement ................................................................................ 3 
2.2 March 5, 1959 Release from Priority ............................................................... 4 
2.3 January 13, 1970 Agreement ......................................................................... 4 
2.4 Permit 16338 ............................................................................................... 4 
2.5 Redhawk (McCarty) Reservoir ........................................................................ 4 

3.0 Water Supply Agreements ......................................................................................... 5 
3.1 Calaveras County Water District Agreement .................................................... 6 
3.2 Delivery to 7327 Schaads Road (Schaads Reservoir) ........................................ 6 
3.3 1811 McCarthy Reservoir Road (Redhawk (McCarty or McCarthy) Dam) ............. 6 

4.0 Minimum Flow Requirements ..................................................................................... 6 
4.1 Middle Fork Dam FERC Project #7506 ............................................................ 7 
4.2 Below South Fork Pumping Station FERC Project #7283 ................................... 7 

5.0 Senate Bill 88 Gaging Compliance by Right .................................................................. 8 
5.1 Gaging Recommendations ............................................................................. 9 
5.2 Annual Data Transmission Costs .................................................................. 11 
5.3 Gage Maintenance, Monitoring and Reporting ............................................... 11 

6.0 Middle Fork Powerhouse Improvements .................................................................... 12 
 

LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 

Attachment A – Water Rights  
Attachment B – George A. Huberty Letter 
Attachment C – Flow Requirements 
Attachment D – Water Year Type Determination



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

3 
January 2021 

 

1.0 Introduction 
Calaveras Public Utility District’s (District) desires to evaluate its water supply, stream gaging program 
and hydropower system.  The purpose of this effort is to provide the District with a better 
understanding of its operational limitations and to provide recommendations to improve system 
capabilities. 
 
This effort included an evaluation of the District’s water rights and associated limitations and 
operational considerations.  WHC reviewed FERC License conditions, minimum flow requirements, 
physical characteristics of the District’s facilities, senior water rights within the basin, and contracts and 
agreements.  As part of this task, WHC reviewed the District’s annual water usage reports filed with the 
SWRCB for compliance with the limitations and conditions of each right. WHC also interviewed District 
staff regarding operational practices and measurement techniques to understand the District 
operations. Our findings are presented in sections 2.0 through 4.0. 
 
As part of our research, the WHC team conducted a site visit to evaluate the existing stream gaging 
equipment.  The purpose of this evaluation was to evaluate compliance with Senate Bill 88.  Senate Bill 
88 set expectations for both the accuracy of measurement devices as well as the monitoring frequency 
for the device.  The regulation links both device accuracy and monitoring frequency to the water right 
volume categories.  Larger diversions and larger reservoirs or ponds have more stringent measurement 
and monitoring requirements and more stringent requirements for the installation and certification of 
measurement devices. Section 5.0 summarizes the recommended gaging upgrades by water right. 
 
CPUD owns and operates the powerhouse below Schaads Reservoir.  It is our understanding that the 
powerhouse has some deficiencies and does not currently generate positive cash flow. Over time, 
components of the power operation have fallen into disrepair or are in need of equipment upgrades.  
The WHC team evaluated the power operations and in section 6.0 provided a summary of 
recommended upgrades to return the power operation to good working condition.  

2.0 CPUD Water Rights 

CPUD was formed on January 16, 1934 by special election. On March 13, the newly formed CPUD 
acquired the Mokelumne River Power and Water Company, which constructed and owned several pre-
1914 ditches and associated water rights. 

A portion of the Mokelumne River Power and Water Company diversion rights have since been 
converted to storage rights allowing CPUD to store water at Schaads Reservoir, located on the Middle 
Fork Mokelumne River.  The following provides a brief history of water rights and agreements 
supporting CPUD operations. Table 1 provides a summary of all District water rights. Attachment A 
includes the water right filings for all four rights held by the District. 
 

2.1 May 8, 1940 Agreement 

The May 8, 1940 Agreement between CPUD and EBMUD is a formal recognition of CPUD’s Pre-1914 
rights by EBMUD.  EBMUD recognized that CPUD has pre-1914 rights to divert from the South Fork of 



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

4 
January 2021 

 

the Mokelumne River as augmented by diversions from the Middle and Licking Forks of the Mokelumne 
River, not to exceed 12.5 cfs for industrial, domestic, mining, and agriculture under water right claim 
S025267.  Per the May 8, 1940 Agreement with East Bay Municipal Utility District, CPUD has the right to 
use a portion of the 12.5 cfs for diversion to storage at Schaads Reservoir not to exceed 1,800 AF/YR 
under water right claim S010773. Water in storage may later be released to augment flow available for 
diversion.  

2.2 March 5, 1959 Release from Priority 

On March 5, 1959, the Department of Water Resources issued a Release from Priority of the State 
Applications Nos. 5647 and 5648, filed July 30, 1927 in favor of East Bay Municipal Utility District’s 
(EBMUD) Applications 13156 and 15201.  The Release from Priority is subject to a reservation for use 
within Calaveras County for waters of the Mokelumne River and its tributaries covered by Applications 
Nos. 5647 and 5648 a quantity of water for direct diversion to beneficial use of 27,000 AF for Calaveras 
County.  The 27,000 AF is to be shared by Calaveras County Water District and Calaveras Public Utility 
District. 

2.3 January 13, 1970 Agreement 

On January 13, 1970 CPUD entered into an agreement with EBMUD for partial assignment of the State 
filed applications 5647 and 5648 water sufficient to construct and operate the proposed Jeff Davis 
Project.  At the time, CPUD and EBMUD anticipated that with existing facilities, prior pre 1914 rights and 
the new storage of at least 1,750 AF per annum will produce a safe yield of 6,656 AF per annum.  CPUD 
agreed that the 6,656 AF would be a part of the 27,000 AF reserved for Calaveras County under the 
State Filing.  Per the 1970 Agreement, CPUD filed an application with the State Water Board resulting in 
Permit 16338 in support of the Jeff Davis Project. 

2.4 Permit 16338 

Permit 16338 granted to CPUD a quantity of water that can be beneficially used and shall not exceed 
2,130 AF per year by storage at Jeff Davis Reservoir to be collected from January 1 to December 31 of 
each year.  The maximum rate of diversion to offstream storage shall not exceed 15 cubic feet per 
second.  The safe yield developed under this permit, together with all other prior rights of CPUD, shall 
not exceed 6,656 AF/YR and shall be a part of the 27,000 AF/YR reserved for use in Calaveras County 
pursuant to the release from priority of Application 5647 and 5648 by the State Water Board to EBMUD 
dated March 5 1959, and as set forth in the agreements between CPUD and EBMUD dated May 8, 1940 
and January 13, 1970.  Decision 858 also discusses the partial assignment of Application 5647 and 5648.  
This supply is currently used to serve the CPUD service areas.   

2.5 Redhawk (McCarty) Reservoir 

Redhawk Reservoir is on Rich Gulch which is tributary to the Calaveras River and is not subject to the 
limitations described in the January 13, 1970 Agreement with EBMUD.  Under the District’s water right, 
the reservoir can store up to 400 AF but is subject to an agreement to provide up to 50 AF per year to 
the underlying property owner. Although the District’s water right is for 400 AF, information publicly 
available on the Division of Safety of Dams website indicates the storage capacity is closer to 2,760 AF.  



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

5 
January 2021 

 

Regardless of the actual size, the District can use 400 AF.  Please see Section 3.3 for additional details.  
Table 1, below, provides a summary of each of the Distict’s rights. 
 
 

Table 1 - Water Rights Summary 

Water Rights Summary 

Application (Permit 
Purpose of 

Use 

Point of Diversion Direct Diversion Diversion to Storage 
Use 
Limit 

 

Number 
Priority 

Date 
Location Stream 

Amount 
(cfs) 

Season 
of 

Diversion 

Amount 
(AFA) 

Season of 
Diversion 

(AFA) 

A0056481  7/30/1927 Domestic 
Municipal 
Incidental 

Power 
Industrial 

   1/1-12/31   18,514 

S004679 1885 
 

Agriculture, 
Domestic 

McCarty 
(Redhawk) 
Reservoir 

Rich Gulch 5 1/1 – 
12/31 

400 1/1 – 
12/31 

400 

S010773 1852 Domestic 
Irrigation 

Stockwatering 
Power 

Below 
Schaads 
Reservoir 

Middle Fork 
Mokelumne 

2.5 1/1 – 
12/31 

1,8002 1/1 – 
12/31 

1800 

S025267 1852 Domestic 
Irrigation 

Stockwatering 
Power 

 South Fork 
Mokelumne 

7.35 1/1 – 
12/31 

  4,704 

A005648F 
(P16338) 

12/13/1971 
(7/30/1927) 

Domestic 
Municipal 
Incidental 

Power 
Industrial 

 Middle Fork 
Mokelumne 
South Fork 
Mokelumne 

   2,1304 1/1 – 
12/31 

2,130 
 

6,6563 

Notes: 
1 Decision 858 allows the Districts to take up to 27,000 AF for development of West Point and the Mokelumne Service Area.  This water is held 

in reserve for the Districts for Mokelumne River supplies needed to serve future development within Calaveras County.  The use limit of 18,514 
AF represents the remaining supply held in reserve for the Districts. 

2 The May 8, 1940 agreement between CPUD and EBMUD gives CPUD the permission to use a portion of the 12.5 cfs direct diversion to store 
up to 1,800 AF per year at Schaads Reservoir.  This 12.5 cfs diversion right may be combined with storage withdrawals to divert a maximum 
of 15 cfs.  The Agreement also states that CPUD's rights in excess of those amounts will be junior and subordinate to EBMUD's rights. 

3 Application 005648F states that the safe yield developed under this permit, together with all other prior Mokelumne River rights of permittee, 
shall not exceed 6,656 AF/YR and shall be a part of the 27,000 acre-feet per annum reserved for use in Calaveras County pursuant to the 
release from priority of Applications 5647 and 5648 by the State Water Board to East Bay Municipal Utility District dated March 5, 1959, and 
as set forth in the agreements between Calaveras Public Utility District and East Bay Municipal Utility District dated May 8, 1940 and January 
13, 1970. 

4 Maximum rate of diversion to off stream storage will not exceed 15 cfs. 

 
 

3.0 Water Supply Agreements 

 The District has entered into water supply agreements with Calaveras County Water District, the 
Property owners of 7327 Schaads Road in Wilseyville, and 1811 McCarthy Reservoir Road in Railroad 
Flat. These agreements are discussed in the following sections 3.1 – 3.3. 



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

6 
January 2021 

 

3.1 Calaveras County Water District Agreement 

As a supplemental supply to CCWD’s Bear Creek Diversion, CPUD has entered into an agreement with 
CCWD to provide 200 AF per year diverted at CCWD’s Middle Fork Pump Station.  The supply is currently 
used to serve the West Point/Wilseyville/Bummerville area. 

 

3.2 Delivery to 7327 Schaads Road (Schaads Reservoir) 

The property located at 7327 Schaad Road Wilseyville, CA is served raw water by a pipe from the 
Schaad’s hydropower plant penstock.  There is no specific water right filed with the State Water 
Resources Control Board separate from the District’s water right S010773 associated with this delivery.  
The District has documentation of the landowner providing the District with an easement, but does not 
appear to have any documented agreement of the water delivery. There are two potential possibilities 
for the basis of this delivery: 

1 The delivery, made under the District’s water right S010773, is per an undocumented 
agreement in exchange for the property owner granting an easement to the District to 
access Schaads Reservoir and associated facilities; or 

2 The property owners have their own right and have never filed an Initial Statement of Water 
Diversion and Use with the SWRCB. 
 

If this delivery is being made under the District’s water right, the volume should be reported as a 
diversion and beneficial use under the District’s water right S010773. 

 

3.3 1811 McCarthy Reservoir Road (Redhawk (McCarty or McCarthy) Dam) 

Based on the opinion of former District water rights attorney, George A. Huberty and his research into 
the history of the CPUD water rights, the District has the right to store in Redhawk (McCarty) Reservoir 
up to 400 AF per year.  Records indicate that the District does not own the land underlying the reservoir 
but has been granted an easement to store water on that land. By agreement, the owner of the land is 
entitled to the first 50 AF of water held in Redhawk (McCarty) Reservoir.  The remaining volume can be 
put to use by the District within the limits of water right S004679.  Please see page 6 of Attachment B. 
 
If the 50 AF delivery is being made under the District’s water right, the volume should be reported as a 
diversion and beneficial use under the District’s water right S004679. 

 

4.0 Minimum Flow Requirements  

Minimum flow requirements are a necessary part of the District’s operations below the Middle Fork 
(Schaads) Dam and Powerplant on the Middle Fork Mokelumne River and below the South Fork Pump 
Station on the South Fork Mokelumne River.  The Middle Fork Dam and Powerplant operate under the 
conditions contained in a comment letter by the State of California Resource Agency submitted in 



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

7 
January 2021 

 

response to the District’s Notice of Application for FERC Project 7506. This FERC permit allows the 
District to operate the Middle Fork Powerhouse under a FERC Exemption.  Water right Application 
A005648F allows the District to divert to storage at Jeff Davis Reservoir using the South Fork Pumping 
Plant.  The water right includes a minimum flow requirement per agreement with the Department of 
Fish and Wildlife.  The minimum requirements for Middle Fork Dam are discussed in section 4.1 and the 
requirements for the South Fork Pumping Station are discussed in section 4.2. 
 

4.1 Middle Fork (Schaads) Dam FERC Project #7506  

A minimum flow requirement of 3 cfs is required below Schaad’s Reservoir. Upon the District requesting 
a FERC License exemption, the Resources Agency of the State of California reviewed the Notice of 
Application.  The review was coordinated with the Energy and Public Utilities Commission, Reclamation 
and Water Resources Control Boards, and the Departments of Boating and Waterways, Fish and Game, 
Conservation, Forestry, Parks and Recreation, Water Resources, and Transportation.  The resulting 
comment letter dated June 12, 1984, Attachment C, includes 14 conditions guiding the operations.  
Condition 4 states that the exemptee (District) will continue the existing 3 cfs streamflow release 
requirement to protect the river’s fishery resource. 
 
 

4.2 Below South Fork Pumping Station FERC Project #7283 

Flow requirements below the South Fork Pumping Station are stated in water right application 
A005648F, paragraph 12, and summarized below. 
 
Normal years  5 cfs or natural flow, whichever is less 
Dry Years 3 cfs or natural flow, whichever is less 

The text from Paragraph 12 can be found documented in Attachment A in water right A005648F (Permit 
16338) and is shown below. 
 
“For the maintenance of fish life, permittee shall provide immediately below the proposed point of 
diversion on the South Fork of the Mokelumne River, which is immediately below the confluence of the 
Licking Fork Mokelumne River with the South Fork Mokelumne River, a flow of five cubic feet per second 
of the natural flow at that point on the South Fork Mokelumne River, whichever is less.  During dry years, 
the flow to be provided immediately below the permittee’s proposed point of diversion may be reduced 
by the permittee to three cubic feet per second or the natural flow, whichever is less.  A dry year is 
hereby defined as one in which the April 1st forecast of runoff made by the Department of Water 
Resources, or such other forecast as this Board may select, indicates the surface flow in the coming year 
will be fifty percent of normal runoff or less. The provisions of this permit term shall be subject to the 
continuing jurisdiction of the State Water Board, and the magnitude of these flows will be reconsiderd by 
the Board in twenty years unless it is requested to reconsider this matter before the that time by either 
the permittee or the Department of Fish and Wildlife (DFW).” 
 



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

8 
January 2021 

 

The forecast of runoff made by the Department of Water Resources is known as Bulletin 120 and can be 
found here: https://cdec.water.ca.gov/snow/bulletin120/. For the Mokelumne River, a forecast of Total 
Inflow to Pardee Reservoir is provided. Attachment D includes the April 1, 2021 Bulletin 120 as an 
example.  Bulletin 120 is produced in February, March, April and May and is usually available to the 
public in the second week of the month. This forecast represents both the Apr – Jul unimpaired runoff 
forecast and the Water Year unimpaired runoff forecast.  For determination of the flow requirement, 
the Water Year unimpaired runoff forecast should be used. Attachment D illustrates how to find the 
Total Inflow to Pardee Reservoir for the Water Year.  Pages 4 & 5 are needed to determine the year 
type.  In a printed copy of Bulletin 120, pages 4 & 5 would be facing each other. In the electronic file the 
pages are sequential.  The Mokelumne River Total Inflow to Pardee Reservoir is highlighted in red on 
page 4.  The corresponding line of data for the Mokelumne River forecast is not labeled on page 5.  To 
identify the correct data on page 5, it is helpful to print both pages 4 and 5 and line them up.  For 2021, 
the water year runoff forecast was 43% of average (also highlighted in red), which results in a dry water 
year type.  For dry years, the flow requirement is 3 cfs or natural flow, whichever is less. 
 
The water right does not give specific instructions as to what period these flow requirements are to be 
applied.  Since the April 1st forecast isn’t available until the second week of the month, the coming year 
could be interpreted as May 1st through the following April 30th.  
 
 

5.0 Senate Bill 88 Gaging Compliance by Right 

 
Senate Bill 88 set expectations for both the accuracy of measurement devices as well as the monitoring 
frequency for the device.  The regulation links both device accuracy and monitoring frequency to the 
volume categories.  Larger diversions and larger reservoirs or ponds have more stringent measurement 
and monitoring requirements and more stringent requirements for the installation and certification of 
measurement devices as described in table 2. 
 

Table 2 - Gaging Requirements 

Type of Diversion Installation 
Deadline 

Required 
Accuracy 

Required 
Monitoring 
Frequency 

Qualification For 
Installation And 

Certification 
Direct Diversion > 1,000 af/year 

Storage > 1,000 af 
January 1, 2017 10% Hourly Engineer/Contractor/Profession

al 
Direct Diversion > 100 af/year 

Storage > 200 af 
July 1, 2017 10% Daily Engineer/Contractor/Profession

al 
Direct Diversion > 10 af/year 

Storage > 50 af 
January 1, 2018 15% Weekly Individual experienced with 

measurement and monitoring 
Storage > 10 af January 1, 2018 15% Monthly Individual experienced with 

measurement and monitoring 
 
Table 3 shows the requirements for each gage by water right.  Because each gage is required to monitor 
flow or storage daily or hourly, a data logger is recommended for each site. 
 



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

9 
January 2021 

 

Table 3 - Gaging requirements by water right 

Water 
Right 
Application 
 

Location Type of Diversion Required 
Accuracy 

Required 
Monitoring 
Frequency 
 

S004679 McCarthy (Redhawk) Reservoir Storage > 200 AF 10% Daily 
S010773 Schaads Reservoir Storage > 1,000 AF 10% Hourly 
S025267 South Fork Mokelumne 

Pumping Plant 
Direct Diversion > 1,000 
AF/Year 

10% Hourly 

A005648F 
(P16338) 

Jeff Davis Reservoir Storage > 1,000 AF 10% Hourly 

 

5.1 Gaging Recommendations 

 
S004679 – Redhawk (McCarthy) Reservoir 
Redhawk Reservoir is used as an intermittent water supply for a neighboring ranch.  Per the State Water 
Resources Control Board’s eWRIMS website, there is one water right at Redhawk Reservoir.  The District 
has water right S004679 which allows for up to 400 AF/year of storage.  Another water user on the lake 
diverts up to 50 AF per year per agreement with the District.  To determine the quantity put to use by 
the District, we propose to determine the change in storage with a new storage gage, then subtract the 
usage by the other diverter. For gaging the total storage at Redhawk Lake we proposed a bubbler-type 
gage.  The equipment list and cost estimate are shown below. 
 
Gage Equipment List: 

 Amazon Bubbler Gage 
 100-watt solar panel with mount and solar controller 
 12V 75 ah battery  
 Staff gage 
 Conduit to encase orifice line for Bubbler gage 

 
Total Equipment Cost: ......................................................................................................... $8,600 

 
 Optional Satellite Radio from Picovale ($2,000) 

 
 
Labor for Installation: .......................................................................................................... $5,000 
 
Total Redhawk Gaging Station Cost .................................................................................... $13,600 
 
 
S010773 – Schaads Reservoir & Outlet Gages 
The District has a Pre-1914 water right to store up to 1,800 AF/year at Schaads Reservoir. The District 
has a pressure transducer that measures water surface elevation at Schaads Reservoir, but does not 
record the data. The proposed gaging equipment will allow the District to record the data hourly as 
required by SB 88. The pre-1914 right also allows the District to divert water at the Middle Fork Ditch, 



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

10 
January 2021 

 

about 1 mile downstream of Schaad’s Reservoir. The Middle Fork Ditch was historically used to deliver 
Middle Fork Mokelumne River water to the Licking Fork for diversions there.  The Middle Fork Ditch is 
not operable, so no stream gage is recommended for this diversion. Releases from Schaad’s Reservoir to 
the Middle Fork Mokelumne is recommended to record release for minimum instream flow 
requirements and to calculate reservoir inflow.  The following equipment can be used to record Schaad’s 
Reservoir storage and Schaad’s releases. 
 
Gage Equipment List: 

 Amazon Bubbler Gage 
 Storm-3 interface 
 Satellite radio with two outputs 
 12V 75 ah battery with trickle charge from AC power in powerhouse 
 Staff gage 
 Conduit to encase orifice line for Bubbler gage 

 
Total Equipment Cost: ......................................................................................................... $9,100 
 
 
Labor for Installation: .......................................................................................................... $5,000 
 
Total Schaads Gaging Station Cost ..................................................................................... $14,100 
 
 
 
S025267 – Pre-1914 Direct Diversion to Jeff Davis Reservoir 
Pre-1914 Water right S025267 allows the District to directly divert South Fork Mokelumne River water 
through Jeff Davis Reservoir to the Jeff Davis Water Treatment Plant for treatment and use.  This direct 
diversion is done using the District’s South Fork Pumping Plant. The District has a gage that measures 
the diversion, but doesn’t record the data on an hourly timestep as required by SB 88. The diversions 
under this Pre-1914 right is operated in coordination with CPUD’s Permit No. 16338 (Application 
A005648F) to provide water for Jeff Davis Project service area.  Term 12 of Permit No. 16338 includes 
discussion of minimum flow requirements below the South Fork Pumping Plant.  The gaging equipment 
proposed below will comply with SB 88 for both the direct diversion at the South Fork Pumping Plant 
and the flow requirement below the Pumping Plant. 
 
 
Gage Equipment List: 

 Amazon Bubbler Gage 
 Storm-3 interface 
 Satellite radio with three outputs 
 12V 75 ah battery with trickle charge from AC power in powerhouse 
 Staff gage 
 Conduit to encase orifice line for Bubbler gage 

 
Total Equipment Cost: ......................................................................................................... $9,100 



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

11 
January 2021 

 

 
 
Labor for Installation: .......................................................................................................... $5,000 
 
Total South Fork Pump Station Gaging Station Cost ............................................................ $14,100 
 
 
Permit 16338 (Application A005648F) – Jeff Davis Reservoir Storage 
Permit 16338 allows diversion of both Middle Fork Mokelumne River and South Fork Mokelumne River 
to Jeff Davis Reservoir from the South Fork Pumping Station. Once diverted, water is stored for use later 
in the season. The Jeff Davis Reservoir storage capacity is about 2,000 AF which requires hourly water 
surface elevation measurements.  The following proposed gaging equipment will provide the required 
measurement data. 
 
Gage Equipment List: 

 Amazon Bubbler Gage 
 100-watt solar panel with mount and solar controller 
 12V 75 ah battery 
 Staff gage 
 Conduit to encase orifice line for Bubbler gage 

 
Total Equipment Cost: ......................................................................................................... $9,700 
 
 
Labor for Installation: .......................................................................................................... $6,000 
 
Total Jeff Davis Reservoir Gaging Station Cost .................................................................... $15,700 
 
 

5.2 Annual Data Transmission Costs 

 
For gages with Satellite Radio Transmission, annual data transmission costs are as listed below 
 
15 Min ........................................................................................................................................ $780  
Hourly ......................................................................................................................................... $540 

 
 

5.3 Gage Maintenance, Monitoring and Reporting 

Once the gages are installed, for the first year, the gage monitoring program includes visiting the 
gage sites to collect data and perform routine maintenance every month.  Gage maintenance visits 
will include field measurements using USGS-approved Price AA or Pygmy current meters.  The 
purpose of these visits is to develop and then verify rating curves and identify shifts in the stream 



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

12 
January 2021 

 

reach control.  During the visits, the hydrographer will also conduct gage equipment checks, make 
any necessary repairs, and collect the data.  Occasionally, replacement of batteries or gaging 
equipment due to failure or vandalism will be necessary.  Although the purchase of replacement 
equipment is outside the scope of this proposal, removal and replacement of the damaged 
equipment can generally be done during routine maintenance trips at no additional charge.   

Once the water surface elevation data have been collected, the data will be reviewed for 
completeness and estimated wherever missing.  Using the rating curves, the water surface elevation 
data will be converted to flow or storage, reported to CPUD staff, and archived.   

 
Total Gage Maintenance Cost .............................................................................................. $3,230 
 

6.0 Middle Fork Powerhouse Improvements 

CPUD has expressed an interest in making the Schaads hydroelectric project more efficient and 
profitable.  The following three items should be considered to work toward that goal. 

 Review Power Purchase Contract 
 Consider Generating Equipment Improvements 
 Reduce Cost of Operation with Control System Improvements 

Power Purchase Contract Review 

Currently, the project sells all the power produced through a connection to PG&E’s 12kV distribution 
line.  To improve the economics of any hydroelectric project, the price paid for the power produced 
needs to be maximized while minimizing the costs of operations.  The power purchase contract 
regulates the price paid for the power, so a contract review is recommended to determine if there 
are any better pricing options available.  The Power purchase contract review is beyond the scope of 
this analysis but should be considered. 

Generating Equipment Improvements 

The existing mechanical and electrical equipment was designed and installed in the early 1980’s.  It 
appears that the selection of the equipment installed was based on the least initial cost.  The existing 
turbines are actually centrifugal pumps that were installed to run water in the reverse direction to 
produce power.  They are from a European manufacturer that is no longer in business and 
replacement parts must be custom made.  The drive system on the larger unit includes a belt drive 
that requires frequent maintenance and gives away some efficiency. 

There are several options available to replace the existing turbines.  The most efficient design is a 
Francis type turbine that incudes wicket gates that allow the unit to accommodate variable flows.  
The lowest flow through the small turbine is advertised at 3.24 cfs, and the highest flow through all 
the turbines is advertised at 35.68 cfs.  A single unit could potentially be used to cover all of the flow 



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

13 
January 2021 

 

variations of the existing turbines and could be used to maintain a constant reservoir level, without 
starting and stopping units.   In addition, only a single generator would have to be used.  The 
tradeoff for the variable flow functionality is Francis turbines are very expensive with complex 
mechanical connections required to operate the many wicket gates used to regulate water flow.  
They also require a downstream pressure head, which may not be practical in this installation, and 
essentially eliminates it for consideration.  Major changes to the existing piping and outflow system 
would be required to accommodate this turbine type. 
 
A second type of turbine that could be used in this head and flow combination is the cross-flow 
type turbine.  They are not as expensive to manufacture as the Francis turbine and do offer some 
flow regulation, possibly as wide as the 3 to 36 cfs range of the existing turbines.  Cross flow turbines 
have a fairly flat efficiency curve at the higher flow range (80 to 84% efficient), however not ever as 
high as a Francis turbine, and they are extremely inefficient at very low flows.  Again, major changes 
would be required to the existing piping, with some changes to the outflow system.  
 
Finally, it is possible that the existing turbines could be replaced with modern centrifugal type 
turbines.  These are effectively the equivalent of fixed flow Francis turbines.  Efficiency could be 
brought back up to that of the original system (as high as 90% efficient).  It may also make more 
sense to replace the belt system with a third generator to eliminate all of the mechanical equipment 
and maintenance.    Once again, changes would inevitably be required on the turbine inlet piping 
system, and the problematic existing Danfoss valve actuators would have to be replaced. 

 

Control System Improvements 

The third consideration is to reduce the costs of operating the equipment.  This can be achieved by 
automating the systems, improving reliability, and minimizing the time required to inspect, maintain, 
and repair the equipment. 

Most of the original control system has already been replaced with a PLC based control system and 
includes a touch screen that consolidates most of the start/stop controls, alarms, and monitoring 
items to a single screen.  This system is still functional, but basic.  The system is capable of starting 
and stopping the units based on reservoir level.  The generating units are programmed to shut down 
when the reservoir falls to a preset level and starts up before the reservoir begins to spill. 

The remote monitoring and control system was originally installed about 20 years ago and operated 
through the dam monitoring PLC system, separate from the generator control system.  It consisted 
of a standard desk top PC with human machine interface (HMI) software installed.  The PC was 
connected to and pulled data from the PLC that was then displayed on the HMI screen and saved to 
files on that PC.  An operator or engineer could access the project PC via phone modem and remote-
control software.  Over time, the PCs have proven to be unreliable in the powerhouse environment, 
and nearly all the phone line, modem, and software equipment is obsolete and unable to operate 
with modern Windows based PC operating systems.  Without the remote HMI system, an operator is 



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

14 
January 2021 

 

required to travel to the project to start or stop the generation.  Often the project will trip off over a 
weekend, or just after an operator leaves, and will remain offline until the operator is able to return. 

In the event of a complete turbine, generator and control system replacement, a new HMI and 
remote access control system would come with the package.  A new package may be able to use the 
phone system for the remote operations, or possibly a satellite-based connection.  In the short term, 
the old PC based HMI system should be replaced with an industrial rated touch screen and satellite 
internet connection.  The industrial touch screen would replace the fragile PC, provide an interface 
for the operators locally, log reservoir level and output values, and connect to the internet for access 
to the controls and monitoring remotely.  The C-More system from Automation Direct has been 
successfully implemented by Henwood Associates at other projects.  The same local screens are 
available to the operators from an internet connected PC or even smart phone with software 
installed.  The system is capable of logging information and may be downloaded as a file to flash 
card or USB drive when needed.  This system can provide a useful graph of the reservoir level and 
power output data.  As far as the connection to the internet, Hughes Net advertises satellite systems 
for remote locations like this, with acceptable performance and reliability.  The data transmission 
would be relatively low since data is only transferred when the system is accessed remotely.  In 
addition, it’s possible that this system could be used for phone service at the project to replace or 
supplement the land line system there now. 
 
Costs Estimates: 
 
The estimated costs for replacing the turbines, generators and switchgear with a new variable flow 
Francis turbine system was not included, since it would be impossible to create the back pressure 
required on the downstream side of the turbine. 
 
The estimated costs for replacing the turbines, generators and switchgear with a new cross flow 
turbine system: 
180 kW Cross Flow Turbine, Generator and Switchgear ............................................................ $397,375 
Civil work required to remove existing turbines, add new equipment platform.............. $  50,000 
Electrical work required to replace existing electrical equipment with new ...................... $  50,000 
 
Total ............................................................................................................................. $497,375 
 
The estimated costs for replacing the turbines, generators and switchgear with a new centrifugal 
pump style turbine system: 
182 kW Pump Turbine (3 each 75kW units), Generator and Switchgear $385,000 
Civil work required to remove existing turbines, add new equipment platform $  25,000 
Electrical work required to replace existing electrical equipment with new $  50,000 
 
Total ............................................................................................................................. $460,000 
 



 

Calaveras Public Utility District  
Water Rights Compliance and Hydropower 
Generating Evaluation 

15 
January 2021 

 

The estimated costs for replacing the PC remote HMI system with a new industrial touch screen 
system and satellite internet connection: 
 
15” Industrial C-More Touch Screen: ...................................................................................................... $2,300 
Mounting Cabinet: ........................................................................................................................................... $ 600 
Touch Screen Programming ...................................................................................................................... $2,500 
Installation ......................................................................................................................................................... $1,200 
Hughes Net Equipment Purchase .............................................................................................................. $ 500 
Set up Router with Static IP Address ........................................................................................................ $ 800 
 
Total ................................................................................................................................. $7,900 
 
In addition, there is a Hughes Net Monthly Service agreement, which starts out at an average $80 but 
probably rises to $100 to $120 per month.  There are likely other satellite internet services available. 
 
The prices above are order of magnitude estimates but should expected to be within plus or minus 
10% of the total.  The new turbine equipment prices were provided by Canyon Hydro, a USA based 
company that has been in the hydroelectric business for 45 years.  They provide quality equipment 
with good efficiency and durability, and excellent customer support.  The recommended option is a 
new centrifugal pump replacement.  There are tradeoffs with this option. The cost and work 
required to replace the equipment is lower, and the efficiency should be just slightly better than the 
cross-flow turbine, but this system would not have a variable flow output.  The replacement HMI 
system cost is based on a system procured, built and installed by Henwood Associates, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT A 

Water Right Documentation (S004679, S010773, S025267, A005648F) 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Right Claim S004679 

Redhawk (McCarty or McCarthy) Reservoir 
 

 

 



rTATg Ot C.ArrnilH|A
ru[' rllourcxt r€|cr

rraTa ttm tlaxncE osflroL xLqtt
DIV'&Orr OF trrATEI. nrcHTs

STATEUENT OF WAIEI' DIY!rjSON AI\D USE
't& t4es, bll b tTltliUr t bg atu r J.

A. Nes oI pcno divsi.r tr",o ......!:-tt..'-r:r*. fr-!/ "' (L'.{*. *l: ::i

L Nrr of tcdt of r*r.r ,!b..{ dtrd..-C!
T&se..ry --3lkr:i

c. ng*er*. *-1" , . ;;;
,teF

a"

s 46ro

.-:?.'.'E---w4

i.p,"psbriss

*2 [1 
" 

.),,, t, n. .. i ,
T7f ,--

D. Nln cf

E ycf cwdr rdL--**C--.dA
c.tdrt ol crp nnn& .-.- "...-{PA*-^.tJi";j';''!:|j
Erlr qudq of trrra nrd clcf, mA ia jrllcac or el-!g
Yrer 86. f&r.

rtt

crllhp:rl
*a*.
d-
5}[

u mdJv ud sood r .- * rrrr cbrr E*ts rsn *'i*ir**g J r b rnin, rcb u
rcra of crcf crop htrlrq .rlrllr udc oilpac

i+r+'Enlrlsrnbme a{.rr*tl
lfiahlraralu.t;nrrsrb rEtr fan - -..*.. -- | :

I

lrl-"s$!r
Trf. d drcdo &dbti 1n lt7.."-.*-

f&dcd o( unrm$ rdr-... *, bL*--.", artt+ p
I a.

f. hr?on of u (rber ns b bdat eld irt

G Gord&oidc c hcrrb of *c. d r {r&1 d Atfl

!tr rarc{lilrrrrf .lll'!. !433 .-J;ri 'rl- 0h 4df
L Nr of pro fllq rrrcmr ".. . 'n l.:tkrt-d**J*

'r;-*ffiffi
hun .,. .Il;a:r 2(& t

lvl,rt .."|'*tr. i.i .r--l -{-.2..* -&:*.&. " !e.c*t*.!-nA
I cttall tb th tolrrt*rt stdc*ttt at hs cd cqrrt to nn f,Uljd&'l

1"1 t/.

Drodna

l'lt3| 8 ilfarr <D
,*

.:6rd,+r+Fl.g.| qaF {q|st'l.::sl r.

-lrd3&
rcrrrrarOe



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Right Claim S010773 

Middle Fork (Schaad) Reservoir, Middle Fork Ditch 
 

 

 



t.

'rai'u 
or irutrr**t,r ' ,''t'twn;;;tr;iitl

"^1lilli.lJ'i:i:'{i:i:il1il::i,':('\"D l.pn 22 pn 
7 3:s

sr^'rurtun';Jil,:t#lt;$"il]T;'Jll,':"),,ffifff; 
#*uTlit ilotcnrcnt du:uk! l* ty1ru.ri,lt..,t u, t iit,,iU

F?C-

10m3

llA. Numc of pcnn' rJiverting o.t",
566, San Andreas 952

B. Nanro of body of rv.rtcr at prhrt of
, MiAdts to _111$6u1$ -( 209l) 754-329J

;!*sr;;;;G"RF--

"' 
t#1.j't=jt-1..-y{scttlon- ? ,To*urlrtp h ^l .Ihruo lt}E ,''M ,' *r,r.

Countn or locato tt on sketcb of rcltton gdrl on ,."e.L rtdti slth rugard ro rebtioirllnciorpruurtncnttocsltoudrno*& (see attached aheet)

E. Copacity of dlvorelon

Crrpoclty of storogo

stcto quo$tlty of wotor tuod cocb mouth tn gclt,urs or rcrc..test

l'cb. I.foa

cubto fcrt lx.r rccrrod
grlhor per nrl:rrrb
sdbrir
ecro.Icot

Iess.

G. Gcncrol dcscriptlon or
.' ': li li' .tT':"i'^"iJcco of uro (uro rlstcb of.rcctbn grld oa ,uituou rrclo r[, tou oorrt t 

'

lL Ycor of 0rst uro ar nearly.5^- Approxlmately 1952. (See

I. Norno o( 1rcrrcn lllfng rtatemcnt

statement)

o...i

averaaPodtlon Dletrlct

Slgroture:

'ott illnt,czrro Sklc
5 - t /'6 nOC> -C)O +Q

Addtut rrr.rn**,-(rodJ ffi,,
llro l$r3 of Uy

Q,lua tri ^-.i --, -i,"u[trl,', 
, r ,"; 'n L) "',f a nmt



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Right Claim S025267 

South Fork of Mokelumne River, Jeff Davis Project 
 

 

 































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Water Right Application A005648F (Permit 16338) 

Middle Fork Mokelumne River, South Fork of Mokelumne River, 
Jeff Davis Project 

 

 

 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 

DIVISION OF WATER RIGHTS 

RIGHT TO DIVERT AND USE WATER 

APPLICATION 5648F PERMIT 16338 

Right Holder: Calaveras Public Utility District 
P.O. Box 666 
San Andreas, CA 95249 

The State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) authorizes the diversion and use of water by the 
right holder in accordance with the limitations and conditions herein SUBJECT TO PRIOR RIGHTS. The priority 
of this right dates from July 30, 1927. This right is issued in accordance with the State Water Board delegation of 
authority to the Deputy Director for Water Rights (Resolution 2012-0029) and the Deputy Director for Water 
Rights redelegation of authority dated July 6, 2012. This right supercedes any previously issued right on 
Application 5648F. 

The Deputy Director for Water Rights finds that: (a) due diligence has been exercised; (b) failure to comply with 
previous time requirements has been occasioned by obstacles which could not be reasonably avoided; and (c) 
satisfactory progress will be made if an extension is granted; and (d) the State Water Resources Control Board 
(State Water Board) has made the required findings pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
or the project is exempt from CEQA. 

The State Water Board has complied with its independent obligation to consider the effect of the proposed project 
on public trust resources and to protect those resources where feasible. (National Audubon Society v. Superior 
Court (1983) 33 Cal.3d 419 [189 Cai.Rptr. 346, 658 P.2d 709].) 

Right holder is hereby granted a right to divert and use water as follows: 

1. Source of water: (1) Middle Fork Mokelumne River and (2) South Fork Mokelumne River 

tributary to: (1) Mokelumne River, and (2) Middle Fork Mokelumne River 

within the County of Calaveras 

2 L r f 
0 

t f d' oca 1on o pom s o 1vers1on 

By California Coordinate 40-acre subdivision of Section Base and 
System of 1983 in Zone 3 public land survey or Township Range 

Meridian 
projection thereof 

(1) North 2,327,500 feet 
NE Y. of SW Y. 8 6N 14E MD 

and East 6,573,869 feet 

(2) North 2,319,000 feet 
SE Y• of NE Y• 23 6N 13E MD 

and East 6,559,069 feet 



Application 5648F 
Page 2 of 7 

L f f d" ocat1on o po1nt o re 1vers1on 

By California Coordinate 

Permit 16338 

40-acre subdivision of 
System of 1983 in Zone3 public land survey or Section Township 

projection thereof 

Jeff Davis Reservoir: 

North 2,315,388 feet and NWY,. of SW Y .. 27 6N 
East 6,559,236 feet 

3. Purpose of use 4. Place of use 

40-acre subdivision of 
Section 

public land survey or (Projected)* Township Range 
projection thereof 

Municipal, 
Within the Present and Potential 

11E, General Service Areas of Calaveras 4N, 5N, 
Domestic and Public Utility District 6N 

12E, 
Industrial 13E 

Incidental Power 1) NW Y• of NW Y• 36 6N 12E 

2) NE Y• of NE Y .. 4 5N 12E 

3) NE Y .. of NE Y .. 24 5N 11E 

Base and Range 
Meridian 

13E MD 

Base and 
Meridian 

Acres 

MD 

MD 

MD 

MD 
.. 

The place of use 1s shown on map #1 f1led August 24, 1970 w1th the State Water Board, and on pet1t1on map filed 
October 26, 1977. 

5. The water appropriated shall be limited to the quantity which can be beneficially used and shall not 
exceed 2,130 acre-feet per year by storage to be collected from January 1 to December 31 of each year. 

(0000005C) 

6. The maximum rate of diversion to offstream storage shall not exceed 15 cubic feet per second. 
(OOOOOOSJ) 

7. The safe yield developed under this permit, together with all other prior rights of permittee, shall not 
exceed 6,656 acre-feet per year and shall be a part of the 27,000 acre-feet per annum reserved for use in 
Calaveras County pursuant to the release from priority of Applications 5647 and 5648 by the State Water 
Board to East Bay Municipal Utility District dated March 5, 1959, and as set forth in the agreements 
between Calaveras Public Utility District and East Bay Municipal Utility District dated May 8, 1940 and 
January 13, 1970. 

(0430300) 

8. Construction work and complete application of the water to the authorized use shall be prosecuted with 
reasonable diligence and completed by December 31 , 2030. 

(0000009) 

9. In accordance with the requirements of Water Code Section 1393, permittee shall clear the site of the 
proposed reservoir of all structures, trees, and other vegetation , which would interfere with the use of the 
reservoir for water storage and recreational purposes. 

(0120050A) 



Application 5648F 
Page 3 of 7 

Permit 16338 

10. Before making any change in the project determined by the State Water Board to be substantial, 
permittee shall submit such change to the Board for its approval in compliance with Water Code Section 
1 0504.5(a). 

(0000119) 

11 . Permittee shall install measuring devices and report annually to the State Water Board the following : 

A. Daily mean measurements of amounts diverted from the Middle Fork Mokelumne River. 
B. Daily mean measurements of amounts diverted from the South Fork Mokelumne River. 
C. Daily measurements of the contents of Jeff Davis Reservoir. 

(0050300) 

12. For the maintenance of fish life, permittee shall provide immediately below the proposed point of diversion 
on the South Fork of the Mokelumne River, which is immediately below the confluence of the Licking Fork 
Mokelumne River with the South Fork Mokelumne River, a flow of five cubic feet per second or the natural 
flow at that point on the South Fork Mokelumne River, whichever is less. During dry years, the flow to be 
provided immediately below the permittee's proposed point of diversion may be reduced by the permittee 
to three cubic feet per second or the natural flow, whichever is less. A dry year is hereby defined as one 
in which the April 1st forecast of runoff made by Department of Water Resources, or such other forecast 
as this Board may select, indicates the surface flow in the coming year will be fifty percent of normal 
runoff or less. The provisions of this permit term shall be subject to the continuing jurisdiction of the State 
Water Board, and the magnitude of these flows will be reconsidered by the Board in twenty years unless 
it is requested to reconsider this matter before that time by either the permittee or the Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (DFW). 

The provisions of this permit term are based upon a bilateral agreement between permittee and DFW and 
shall not be construed as a finding by the State Water Board that the amount of water named herein is 
either adequate or required for the maintenance of fish life. 

(0430400) 



Application 5648F 
Page 4 of 7 

Permit 16338 

THIS RIGHT IS ALSO SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

A Right holder is on notice that: (1) failure to timely commence or complete construction work or beneficial 
use of water with due diligence, (2) cessation or partial cessation of beneficial use of water, or (3) failure 
to observe any of the terms or conditions of this right, may be cause for the State Water Board to consider 
revocation (including partial revocation) of this right. (Cal. Code Regs., tit. 23, § 850.) 

(0000016) 

B. Right holder is on notice that when the State Water Board determines that any person is violating, or 
threatening to violate, any term or condition of a right, the State Water Board may issue an order to that 
person to cease and desist from that violation . (Wat. Code, § 1831 .) 

(0000017) 

C. Right holder is not authorized to make any modifications to the location of diversion facilities, place of use 
or purposes of use, or make other changes to the project that do not conform with the terms and 
conditions of this right, prior to submitting a change petition and obtaining approval of the State Water 
Board. 

(0000018) 

D. Once the time to develop beneficial use of water ends under this permit, right holder is not authorized to 
increase diversions prior to submitting a time extension petition and obtaining approval of the State Water 
Board . 

(0000019) 

E. Only the amount of water applied to beneficial use during the authorized diversion season, as determined 
by the State Water Board, shall be considered when issuing a license. (Wat. Code,§ 1610.) 

(0000006) 

F. Right holder shall maintain records of the amount of water diverted and used under this right to enable the 
State Water Board to determine the amount of water that has been applied to beneficial use pursuant to 
Water Code section 1605. 

(0000015) 

G. Right holder shall promptly submit any reports, data, or other information that may reasonably be required 
by the State Water Board, including but not limited to documentation of water diversion and use under this 
right and documentation of compliance with the terms and conditions of this right. 

(0000010) 

H. No water shall be diverted under this right unless right holder is operating in accordance with a 
compliance plan, satisfactory to the Deputy Director for Water Rights. Said compliance plan shall specify 
how right holder will comply with the terms and conditions of this right. Right holder shall comply with all 
reporting requirements in accordance with the schedule contained in the compliance plan. 

(0000070) 

I. Right holder shall grant, or secure authorization through right holder's right of access to property owned 
by another party, the staff of the State Water Board, and any other authorized representatives of the State 
Water Board the following: 

1. Entry upon property where water is being diverted, stored or used under a right issued by the State 
Water Board or where monitoring, samples and/or records must be collected under the conditions of 
this right; 



Application 5648F 
Page 5 of 7 

Permit 16338 

2. Access to copy any records at reasonable times that are kept under the terms and conditions of a 
right or other order issued by State Water Board; 

3. Access to inspect at reasonable times any project covered by a right issued by the State Water 
Board , equipment (including monitoring and control equipment), practices, or operations regulated by 
or required under this right; and, 

4. Access to photograph , sample, measure, and monitor at reasonable times for the purpose of ensuring 
compliance with a right or other order issued by State Water f:!oard , or as otherwise authorized by the 
Water Code. 

(0000011) 

J. This right shall not be construed as conferring right of access to any lands or facilities not owned by right 
holder. 

(0000022) 

K. All rights are issued subject to available flows. Inasmuch as the source contains treated wastewater, 
imported water from another stream system, or return flow from other projects, there is no guarantee that 
such supply will continue. 

(0000025) 

L. This right does not authorize diversion of water dedicated by other right holders under a senior right for 
purposes of preserving or enhancing wetlands, habitat, fish and wildlife resources, or recreation in , or on, 
the water. (Wat. Code, § 1707.) The Division of Water Rights maintains information about these 
dedications. It is right holders' responsibility to be aware of any dedications that may preclude diversion 
under this right. 

(0000212) 

M. No water shall be diverted or used under this right, and no construction related to such diversion shall 
commence, unless right holder has obtained and is in compliance with all necessary permits or other 
approvals required by other agencies. If an amended right is issued, no new facilities shall be utilized, nor 
shall the amount of water diverted or used increase beyond the maximum amount diverted or used during 
the previously authorized development schedule, unless right holder has obtained and is in compliance 
with all necessary requirements, including but not limited to the permits and approvals listed in this term. 

Within 90 days of the issuance of this right or any subsequent amendment, right holder shall prepare and 
submit to the Division of Water Rights a list of, or provide information that shows proof of attempts to 
solicit information regarding the need for, permits or approvals that may be required for the project. At a 
minimum, right holder shall provide a list or other information pertaining to whether any of the following 
permits or approvals are required : (1) lake or streambed alteration agreement with the Department of Fish 
and Wildlife (Fish & G. Code,§ 1600 et seq.); (2) Department of Water Resources, Division of Safety of 
Dams approval (Wat. Code, § 6002); (3) Regional Water Quality Control Board Waste Discharge 
Requirements (Wat. Code, § 13260 et seq .); (4) U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Clean Water Act section 
404 permit (33 U.S.C. § 1344); and (5) local grading permits. 

Right holder shall , within 30 days of issuance of any permits, approvals or waivers, transmit copies to the 
Division of Water Rights. 

(0000203) 

N. Urban water suppliers must comply with the Urban Water Management Planning Act (Wat. Code, § 10610 
et seq.). An "urban water supplier" means a supplier, either publicly or privately owned, providing water 



Application 5648F 
Page 6 of 7 

Permit 16338 

for municipal purposes either directly or indirectly to more than 3,000 customers or supplying more than 
3,000 acre-feet of water annually. 

Agricultural water users and suppliers must comply with the Agricultural Water Management Planning Act 
(Act) (Water Code,§ 10800 et seq .). Agricultural water users applying for a permit from the State Water 
Board are required to develop and implement water conservation plans in accordance with the Act. An 
"agricultural water supplier" means a supplier, either publicly or privately owned, supplying more than 
50,000 acre-feet of water annually for agricultural purposes. An agricultural water supplier includes a 
supplier or contractor for water, regardless of the basis of right, which distributes or sells for ultimate 
resale to customers. 

(00000290) 

0 . Pursuant to Water Code sections 100 and 275 and the common law public trust doctrine, all rights and 
privileges under this right, including method of diversion , method of use, and quantity of water diverted, 
are subject to the continuing authority of the State Water Board in accordance with law and in the interest 
of the public welfare to protect public trust uses and to prevent waste, unreasonable use, unreasonable 
method of use, or unreasonable method of diversion of said water. 

The continuing authority of the State Water Board may be exercised by imposing specific requirements 
over and above those contained in this right with a view to eliminating waste of water and to meeting the 
reasonable water requirements of right holder without unreasonable draft on the source. Right holder may 
be required to implement a water conservation plan, features of which may include but not necessarily be 
limited to (1) reusing or reclaiming the water allocated; (2) using water reclaimed by another entity instead 
of all or part of the water allocated; (3) restricting diversions so as to eliminate agricultural tailwater or to 
reduce return flow; (4) suppressing evaporation losses from water surfaces; (5) controlling phreatophytic 
growth; and (6) installing, maintaining, and operating efficient water measuring devices to assure 
compliance with the quantity limitations of this right and to determine accurately water use as against 
reasonable water requirements for the authorized project. No action will be taken pursuant to this 
paragraph unless the State Water Board determines, after notice to affected parties and opportunity for 
hearing, that such specific requirements are physically and financially feasible and are appropriate to the 
particular situation . 

The continuing authority of the State Water Board also may be exercised by imposing further limitations 
on the diversion and use of water by right holder in order to protect public trust uses. No action will be 
taken pursuant to this paragraph unless the State Water Board determines, after notice to affected parties 
and opportunity for hearing, that such action is consistent with California Constitution, article X, section 2; 
is consistent with the public interest; and is necessary to preserve or restore the uses protected by the 
public trust. 

(0000012) 

P. The quantity of water diverted under this right is subject to modification by the State Water Board if, after 
notice to right holder and an opportunity for hearing, the State Water Board finds that such modification is 
necessary to meet water quality objectives in water quality control plans which have been or hereafter 
may be established or modified pursuant to Division 7 of the Water Code. No action will be taken 
pursuant to this paragraph unless the State Water Board finds that (1) adequate waste discharge 
requirements have been prescribed and are in effect with respect to all waste discharges which have any 
substantial effect upon water quality in the area involved, and (2) the water quality objectives cannot be 
achieved solely through the control of waste discharges. 

(0000013) 

Q. This right does not authorize any act which results in the taking of a candidate, threatened or endangered 
species or any act which is now prohibited, or becomes prohibited in the future, under either the California 



Application 5648F 
Page 7 of 7 

Permit 16338 

Endangered Species Act (Fish & G. Code, § 2050 et seq.) or the federal Endangered Species Act (16 
U.S.C. § 1531 et seq.). If a "take" will result from any act authorized under this right, right holder shall 
obtain any required authorization for an incidental take prior to construction or operation of the project. 
Right holder shall be responsible for meeting all requirements of the applicable Endangered Species Act 
for the project authorized under this right. 

(0000014) 

Section 1392. Every permittee, if he accepts a permit, does so under the conditions precedent that no value 
whatsoever in excess of the actual amount paid to the State therefor shall at any time be assigned to or claimed for 
any permit granted or issued under the provisions of this division (of the Water Code), or for any rights granted or 
acquired under the provisions of this division (of the Water Code), in respect to the regulation by any competent 
public authority of the services or the price of the services to be rendered by any permittee or by the holder of any 
rights granted or acquired under the provisions of this division (of the Water Code) or in respect to any valuation for 
purposes of sale to or purchase, whether through condemnation proceedings or otherwise, by the State or any city, 
city and county, municipal water district, irrigation district, lighting district, or any political subdivision of the State, of 
the rights and property of any permittee, or the possessor of any rights granted, issued, or acquired under the 
provisions of this division (of the Water Code) . 

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD 

L«~ 
~aa~baraEvoy, Deputy Director 

Division of Water Rights 

MAY 0 1 2013 
Dated: 



ATTACHMENT B 

July 11, 1967 Letter from George A. Huberty summarizing the CPUD Pre-1914 Water Rights 

















ATTACHMENT C 

June 12, 1984 Letter from State of California Resources Agency Listing Operational Conditions 
for the Middle Fork Dam Project (FERC 7506) 









ATTACHMENT D 

April 1, 2021 Bulletin 120 for Water Year Type Determination 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

Bulletin 120 

Department of Water Resources California 
Cooperative Snow Surveys  

Water Conditions in California 

April 1, 2021 
 

 



Summary of Water Conditions
April 1, 2021

March continued the dry pattern of the current water year. Statewide precipitation was about 55
percent of average for the month and for the season since October 1. We are past the bulk of the
rainy season and significant changes in water year amounts are not likely.

Forecasts of median April through July runoff are about 50 percent of average compared to 55
percent in last year's April 1 forecast. Last year's runoff was about 55 percent of average.

Snowpack water content is about 60 percent of average, slightly more than the 50 percent last year
at this time. The percentages range from 70 percent in the northern Sierra Nevada to 35 percent in
the southern Sierra Nevada.

Precipitation from October through March has been about 55 percent statewide, somewhat drier
than the 65 percent reported last year at this time. The season has been drier in the south than in the
northern regions.

Runoff was 30 percent of average for March and for the water year so far, less than the 40 percent
reported last year through March. Estimated runoff of the eight major rivers of the Sacramento-San
Joaquin Delta region in march was 1.07 million acre-feet.

Reservoir storage is about 75 percent of average for this date compared to 100 percent last year on
April 1.

SUMMARY OF WATER CONDITIONS
IN PERCENT OF AVERAGE

HYDROLOGIC REGION
PRECIPITATION

OCTOBER 1
TO DATE

APRIL 1
SNOW WATER

CONTENT

APRIL 1
RESERVOIR
STORAGE

RUNOFF
OCTOBER 1

TO DATE

APRIL-JULY
RUNOFF

FORECAST

WATER YEAR
RUNOFF

FORECAST

NORTH COAST 60 70 65 35 55 40

SAN FRANCISCO BAY 45 -- 75 5 -- --

CENTRAL COAST 60 -- 55 40 -- --

SOUTH COAST 45 -- 85 10 -- --

SACRAMENTO RIVER 50 75 70 35 60 45

SAN JOAQUIN RIVER 60 60 85 25 50 40

TULARE LAKE 45 35 55 25 30 30

NORTH LAHONTAN 55 60 75 40 50 45

SOUTH LAHONTAN 35 50 100 65 50 55

COLORADO RIVER 35 -- -- -- -- --

STATEWIDE 55 60 75 30 50 40

1



DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 
CALIFORNIA COOPERATIVE SNOW SURVEYS 

SEASONAL PRECIPITATION
IN PERCENT OF AVERAGE TO DATE

October 1, 2020 through March 31, 2021

2



DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 
CALIFORNIA COOPERATIVE SNOW SURVEYS 

FORECAST OF APRIL-JULY
UNIMPAIRED SNOWMELT RUNOFF

April 1, 2021

3

sdeguzma
Text Box
45%



April 1, 2021 FORECASTS
APRIL-JULY UNIMPAIRED RUNOFF

HYDROLOGIC REGION
    and Watershed

Apr-Jul Unimpaired Runoff in 1,000 Acre-Feet (1)
HISTORICAL FORECAST

50 Yr
Avg
(2)

Max of
Record

(13)

Min of
Record

(13)

Apr-Jul
Forecast

Pct
of

Avg

80%
Probability
Range (1)

North Coast
Trinity River at Lewiston Lake 639 1,593 80 350 55% 240  - 500

SACRAMENTO RIVER
Upper Sacramento River

Sacramento River at Delta above Shasta Lake 295 751 39 190 64%    
McCloud River above Shasta Lake 385 850 185 270 70%    
Pit River near Montgomery Creek + Squaw Creek 1,020 2,098 480 700 69%    

Total Inflow to Shasta Lake 1,756 3,525 711 1,190 68% 990  - 1,460
Sacramento River above Bend Bridge, near Red Bluff 2,421 5,117 943 1,520 63% 1,210  - 1,930

Feather River
Feather River at Lake Almanor near Prattville (3) 241 640 77 145 60%    
North Fork at Pulga (4) 842 2,291 187 500 59%    

Feather River at Oroville 1,704 4,676 378 1,020 60% 660  - 1,380
Yuba River

North Yuba below Goodyears Bar (5) 271 612 40 170 63%    
Canyon Creek below Bowman Lake (5) 103 177 36 63 61%    
South Yuba at Langs Crossing (6) 237 559 48 145 61%    

Yuba River near Smartsville plus Deer Creek 968 2,424 151 600 62% 360  - 840
American River

North Fork at North Fork Dam (7) 240 562 40 150 63%    
Silver Creek below Camino Diversion Dam (8) 157 390 31 95 61%    

American River below Folsom Lake 1,199 3,074 185 740 62% 530  - 1,040
 

SAN JOAQUIN RIVER
Cosumnes River at Michigan Bar 125 446 8 55 44% 35  - 90

Mokelumne River
South Fork near West Point (5) 40 143 3 23 57%    

Total Inflow to Pardee Reservoir 457 1,076 75 260 57% 170  - 360
Stanislaus River

Middle Fork below Beardsley Dam (8) 297 680 84 160 54%    
North Fork Inflow to McKays Point Dam (9) 197 462 30 105 53%    

Stanislaus River below Goodwin Reservoir (12) 682 1,710 116 360 53% 230  - 550
Tuolumne River

Cherry Creek below Dion Power Plant (5) 317 672 64 170 54%    
Tuolumne River near Hetch Hetchy (4) 587 1,203 180 320 55%    

Tuolumne River below La Grange Reservoir (12) 1,193 2,682 301 650 54% 470  - 940
Merced River

Merced River at Pohono Bridge (5) 369 820 75 175 47%    
Merced River below Merced Falls (12) 623 1,588 104 300 48% 190  - 460

San Joaquin River
Big Creek below Huntington Lake (10) 97 211 4 38 39%    
South Fork near Florence Lake (11) 188 377 55 72 38%    

San Joaquin River inflow to Millerton Lake 1,228 3,355 193 470 38% 270  - 700
 

TULARE LAKE
Kings River

Kings River below Dinkey Creek (14) 395 932 44 130 33%    
Kings River below Pine Flat Reservoir 1,210 3,113 208 400 33% 230  - 580

Kaweah River below Terminus Reservoir 285 814 42 80 28% 35  - 130

Tule River below Lake Success 63 259 1 9 14% 3  - 25

Kern River
Kern River near Kernville (11) 379 1,088 57 90 24%    

Kern River inflow to Lake Isabella 458 1,657 57 110 24% 60  - 180
 

(1) See inside the back cover for definition.
(2) All 50 year averages are based on years 1966-2015 unless
otherwise noted.
(3) Apr-Jul average, min, max based on years 1981-2015.
(4) Apr-Jul average, min, max based on years 1968-2015.
(5) Apr-Jul average, min, max based on years 1966-2015.

(6) Apr-Jul average, min, max based on years 1981-2015.
(7) Apr-Jul average, min, max based on years 1972-2015.
(8) Apr-Jul average, min, max based on years 1987-2015.
(9) Apr-Jul average, min, max based on years 1989-2015.
(10) Apr-Jul average, min, max based on years 1988-2015.
(11) Apr-Jul average, min, max based on years 1976-2015.

4

JeffMeyer
Highlight



April 1, 2021 FORECASTS
WATER YEAR UNIMPAIRED RUNOFF

Water Year Unimpaired Runoff in 1,000 Acre-Feet (1)
HISTORICAL DISTRIBUTION FORECAST

50 Yr
Avg
(2)

Max of
Record

(15)

Min of
Record

(15)

Oct
Thru
Jan

Feb
*

Mar
*

Apr
 

May
 

Jun
 

Jul
 

Aug
 

Sep
 

Water
Year

Forecast

Pct
of

Avg

80%
Probability
Range (1)

 
1,348 2,990 200 67 52 51 142 144 50 14 6 3 530 39% 415  - 685

 
 

860 1,966 165 61 40 39 87 63 26 14 10 10 350 41% -  - -
1,183 2,353 557 226 65 73 88 72 58 52 47 44 725 61% -  - -
3,002 5,150 1,484 549 157 185 220 190 160 130 114 111 1,815 60% -  - -
5,831 10,796 2,479 823 282 333 435 335 230 190 178 174 2,980 51% 2,720  - 3,330
8,544 17,180 3,294 1,162 445 437 555 425 300 240 205 201 3,970 46% 3,575  - 4,490

 
610 1,194 329  

2,122 4,741 570  
4,407 10,178 995 394 202 214 410 350 160 100 80 71 1,980 45% 1,565  - 2,395

 
544 1,133 102  
242 368 75  
379 733 176  

2,268 5,604 369 136 79 96 245 250 80 25 12 12 935 41% 685  - 1,185
 

580 1,356 66  
301 681 105  

2,626 7,391 349 112 110 128 305 300 115 20 6 5 1,100 42% 885  - 1,405
 

 
379 1,253 20 18 15 20 30 19 5 1 0 0 108 29% 85  - 145

 
107 349 8  
748 1,901 129 19 18 26 95 125 35 5 1 1 325 43% 230  - 430

 
416 937 144  
301 645 100  

1,149 3,078 155 49 29 44 130 160 58 12 3 1 485 42% 355  - 680
 

497 1,041 70  
749 1,645 206  

1,909 4,631 383 38 39 69 192 303 135 20 7 3 805 42% 620  - 1,105
 

469 1,062 92  
992 2,787 150 25 16 26 98 135 55 12 1 1 370 37% 255  - 535

 
164 356 11  
236 507 71  

1,793 4,642 327 56 38 58 130 200 110 30 13 5 640 36% 430  - 880
 

 
 

545 1,309 104  
1,702 4,287 359 40 23 34 110 180 85 25 10 7 513 30% 335  - 705

451 1,402 89 11 7 10 25 35 17 3 1 1 110 24% 60  - 165

147 615 10 7 4 5 5 3 1 0 0 0 25 17% 15  - 45

 
574 1,639 120  
728 2,318 130 46 15 17 31 41 24 14 10 7 205 28% 145  - 290

 

(12) Forecast point names based on USGS gage names. Stanislaus below Goodwin also known as inflow to New Melones, Tuolumne River below La
Grange also known as inflow to Don Pedro, Merced River below Merced Falls also known as inflow to McClure.
(13) For the tributaries, the max and min values were determined using the same period of record as the Apr-Jul values.
(14) Apr-Jul average, min, max based on years 1970-2015.
(15) For tributaries, the average, min and max values may not be calculated over the same period as the Apr-Jul values.
* Unimpaired runoff in months prior to forecast date are based on measured flows.

5

JeffMeyer
Highlight



April 1, 2021 FORECASTS
APRIL-JULY UNIMPAIRED RUNOFF

HYDROLOGIC REGION
    and Watershed

Apr-Jul Unimpaired Runoff in 1,000 Acre-Feet (1)
HISTORICAL FORECAST

50 Yr
Avg
(2)

Max of
Record

(6)

Min of
Record

(6)

Apr-Jul
Forecast

Pct
of

Avg
 

NORTH COAST

Scott River
Scott River nr Ft Jones (3) 173 398 22 61 35%

Klamath River
Total inflow to Upper Klamath Lake (4) 475 1,150 149 280 59%

 

NORTH LAHONTAN

Truckee River
Lake Tahoe to Farad accretions 250 713 48 130 52%
Lake Tahoe Rise (assuming gates closed, ft) 1.3 5.4 0.2 0.6 45%

Carson River
West Fork Carson River at Woodfords 52 135 10 27 52%
East Fork Carson River near Gardnerville 182 480 43 97 53%

Walker River
West Walker River below Little Walker, near Coleville 153 410 35 82 54%
East Walker River near Bridgeport 61 209 7 18 30%

 

SOUTH LAHONTAN

Owens River
Total tributary flow to Owens River (5) 231 579 84 112 48%

 

(1) See inside the back cover for definition.
(2) All 50 year averages are based on years 1966-2015 unless otherwise noted.
(3) Forecast by National Weather Service California-Nevada River Forecast Center. 30 yr average (1981-2010).
(4) Forecast by U.S. Natural Resources Conservation Service and National Weather Service California-Nevada River Forecast Center, April through
September forecast, 30 year average based on years 1981-2010.
(5) Forecast by Department of Water and Power, City of Los Angeles, average based on years 1961-2010.
(6) For the tributaries, the period of record over which the minimum values are found does not include years after water year 2011.

6



NORTH COAST REGION

 SNOWPACK- First of the month measurements made at 15
snow courses indicate an area wide snow water equivalent
of 19.4 inches. This is 70 percent of the seasonal April 1
average. Last year at this time the pack was holding 11.6
inches of water.

 PRECIPITATION- Seasonal precipitation (October 1 through
to the end of March) on this area was 60 percent of normal.
Precipitation last month was about 55 percent of the monthly
average. Seasonal precipitation at this time last year stood
at 50 percent of normal.

 RESERVOIR STORAGE- First of the month storage at 6
reservoirs was 1.55 million acre-feet which is 65 percent of
average. About 50 percent of available capacity was being
used. Storage in these reservoirs at this time last year was
100 percent of average.

 RUNOFF- Seasonal runoff of streams draining this area
totaled 2.99 million acre-feet which is 35 percent of average.
Last year, runoff for the same period was 30 percent of
average.

7



SACRAMENTO RIVER REGION

 SNOWPACK- First of the month measurements made at 72
snow courses indicate an area wide snow water equivalent
of 21.5 inches. This is 75 percent of the seasonal April 1
average. Last year at this time the pack was holding 16.2
inches of water.

 PRECIPITATION- Seasonal precipitation (October 1 through
to the end of March) on this area was 50 percent of normal.
Precipitation last month was about 60 percent of the monthly
average. Seasonal precipitation at this time last year stood
at 55 percent of normal.

 RESERVOIR STORAGE- First of the month storage at 43 
reservoirs was 8.33 million acre-feet which is 70 percent of
average. About 50 percent of available capacity was being
used. Storage in these reservoirs at this time last year was
95 percent of average.

 RUNOFF- Seasonal runoff of streams draining this area
totaled 3.51 million acre-feet which is 35 percent of average.
Last year, runoff for the same period was 45 percent of
average.

The  isSacramento Region 40-30-30 Water Supply Index
forecast to be 4.4 assuming median meteorological
conditions for the remainder of the year. This classifies the
year as "Critical" in the Sacramento Valley according to the
State Water Resources Control Board.

8



SAN JOAQUIN RIVER AND TULARE LAKE REGIONS

 SNOWPACK - First of the month measurements made at
70   snow courses indicate an areaSan Joaquin Region
wide snow water equivalent of 18.5 inches. This is 60
percent of the seasonal April 1 average. Last year at this
time the pack was holding 14.3 inches of water. At the same
time 45   snow courses indicate a basin-wideTulare Lake
snow water equivalent of 9.4 inches. This is 35 percent of
the seasonal April 1 average. Last year this time the pack
was holding 10.0 inches of water.

 PRECIPITATION - Seasonal precipitation (October 1
through to the end of March) on the San Joaquin Region
was 60 percent of normal. Precipitation last month was
about 65 percent of the monthly average. Seasonal
precipitation at this time last year stood at 70 percent of
normal. Seasonal precipitation (October 1 through to the end
of March) on the  was 45 percent ofTulare Lake Region
normal. Precipitation last month was about 55 percent of the
monthly average. Seasonal precipitation at this time last
year stood at 60 percent of normal.

 RESERVOIR STORAGE - First of the month storage in 34 
 reservoirs was 6.38 million acre-feetSan Joaquin Region

which is 85 percent of average. About 55 percent of
available capacity was being used. Storage in these
reservoirs at this time last year was 105 percent of average.
First of the month storage in 6 Tulare Lake Region
reservoirs was 490 thousand acre-feet which is 55 percent of
average. About 25 percent of available capacity was being
used. Storage in these reservoirs at this time last year was
95 percent of average.

 RUNOFF - Seasonal runoff of streams draining the San
 totaled 603 thousand acre-feet which is 25Joaquin Region

percent of average. Last year, runoff for the same period
was 40 percent of average. Seasonal runoff of streams
draining the  area totaled 218 thousandTulare Lake Region
acre-feet which is 25 percent of average. Last year, runoff
for the same period was 55 percent of average.

The  isSan Joaquin Region 60-20-20 Water Supply Index
forecast to be 1.4 assuming based on the 75 percent
exceedance level forecast. This classifies the year as
"Critical" in the San Joaquin according to the State Water
Resources Control Board.

9



NORTH AND SOUTH LAHONTAN REGIONS

 SNOWPACK- First of the month measurements made at 16 
 snow courses indicate an areaNorth Lahontan Region

wide snow water equivalent of 16.5 inches. This is
60 percent of the seasonal April 1 average. Last year at this
time the pack was holding 10.9 inches of water. At the same
time 17  snow courses indicate aSouth Lahontan Region
basin-wide snow water equivalent of 10.3 inches. This is 50
percent of the seasonal April 1 average. Last year at this
time the pack was holding 10.7 inches of water.

 PRECIPITATION- Seasonal precipitation (October 1 through
to the end of March) on the  was 55North Lahontan Region
percent of normal. Precipitation last month was about
55 percent of the monthly average. Seasonal precipitation at
this time last year stood at 60 percent of normal. Seasonal
precipitation (October 1 through to the end of March) on the 

 was 35 percent of normal.South Lahontan Region
Precipitation last month was about 30 percent of the monthly
average. Seasonal precipitation at this time last year stood
at 85 percent of normal.

 RESERVOIR STORAGE- First of the month storage in 5 
 reservoirs was 419 thousandNorth Lahontan Region

acre-feet which is 75 percent of average. About 40 percent
of available capacity was being used. Storage in these
reservoirs at this time last year was 145 percent of average.
First of the month storage in 8 South Lahontan Region
reservoirs was 265 thousand acre-feet which is 100 percent
of average. About 65 percent of available capacity was
being used. Storage in these reservoirs at this time last year
was 110 percent of average.

 RUNOFF- Seasonal runoff of streams draining the North
 totaled 106 thousand acre-feet which isLahontan Region

40 percent of average. Last year, runoff for the same period
was 60 percent of average. Seasonal runoff of streams
draining the  area totaled 44South Lahontan Region
thousand acre-feet which is 65 percent of average. Last
year, runoff for the same period was 90 percent of average.

10



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AND CENTRAL COAST REGIONS

 PRECIPITATION- Seasonal precipitation (October 1 through
to the end of March) on the San Francisco Bay Region
was 45 percent of normal. Precipitation last month was
about 55 percent of the monthly average. Seasonal
precipitation at this time last year stood at 50 percent of
normal. Seasonal precipitation (October 1 through to the end
of March) on the  was 60 percent ofCentral Coast Region
normal. Precipitation last month was about 55 percent of the
monthly average. Seasonal precipitation at this time last
year stood at 90 percent of normal.

 RESERVOIR STORAGE- First of the month storage in 17 
 reservoirs was 394 thousandSan Francisco Region

acre-feet which is 75 percent of average. About 55 percent
of available capacity was being used. Storage in these
reservoirs at this time last year was 90 percent of average.
First of the month storage in 6 Central Coast Region
reservoirs was 388 thousand acre-feet which is 55 percent of
average. About 40 percent of available capacity was being
used. Storage in these reservoirs at this time last year was
75 percent of average.

 RUNOFF- Seasonal runoff of streams draining the San
 totaled 2.4 thousand acre-feet which is 5Francisco Region

percent of average. Last year, runoff for the same period
was 15 percent of average. Seasonal runoff of streams
draining the  totaled 112 thousandCentral Coast Region
acre-feet which is 40 percent of average. Last year, runoff
for the same period was 35 percent of average.

11



SOUTH COAST REGION

PRECIPITATION - October through March seasonal precipitation on the South Coast Region is 45 percent of average.
March precipitation was 60 percent of the monthly average. Seasonal precipitation at this time last year was 90 percent of
average.

RESERVOIR STORAGE - March 31 storage in the 29 major reservoirs was 1.24 million acre-feet which is 85 percent of
average. About 60 percent of available capacity was being used. Storage in these reservoirs at this time last year was 90
percent of average.

RUNOFF - October through March seasonal runoff of streams draining this area totaled 14.0 thousand acre-feet which is
10 percent of average. Last year, runoff for the same period was 30 percent of average.

COLORADO RIVER REGION

SNOWPACK - The April 1 snowpack in the Colorado River basin above Lake Powell is 85 percent of average, highest in
the South Eastern Utah basin at 105 percent of average and lowest in the Price-San Rafael basin at 70 percent of
average.

PRECIPITATION - Seasonal precipitation (October through March) on the  was 35 percent ofColorado River Region
average. Precipitation last month was about 25 percent of the monthly average. Seasonal precipitation at this time last
year stood at 170 percent of average.

RESERVOIR STORAGE - First of the month storage at 4 reservoirs was 21.5 million acre-feet which is 55 percent of
average. About 40 percent of available capacity was being used. Storage in these reservoirs at this time last year was 70
percent of average.

RUNOFF - The April-July inflow to Lake Powell is forecast to be 3.2 million acre-feet, which is 45 percent of average.

12



MAJOR WATER DISTRIBUTION PROJECTS
RESERVOIR STORAGE

(AVERAGES BASED ON 1966-2015 OR PERIOD RECORD)

RESERVOIR CAPACITY
1,000 AF

AVERAGE
STORAGE

1,000 AF

STORAGE AT END OF March
2020

1,000 AF
2021

1,000 AF
PERCENT
AVERAGE

PERCENT
CAPACITY

STATE WATER PROJECT

Lake Oroville 3,538 2,670 2,294 1,435 54% 41%

San Luis Reservoir (SWP) 1,062 958 975 680 71% 64%

Lake Del Valle 77 37 30 32 86% 42%

Lake Silverwood 78 68 68 67 99% 86%

Pyramid Lake 180 165 164 167 101% 93%

Castaic Lake 325 286 285 249 87% 77%

Perris Lake 131 106 121 119 112% 90%

CENTRAL VALLEY PROJECT

Trinity Lake 2,448 1,888 1,975 1,292 68% 53%

Lake Shasta 4,552 3,657 3,600 2,392 65% 53%

Whiskeytown Lake 241 213 211 207 97% 86%

Folsom Lake 977 633 476 361 57% 37%

New Melones Reservoir 2,400 1,495 1,892 1,539 103% 64%

Millerton Lake 521 362 281 179 49% 34%

San Luis Reservoir (CVP) 971 847 536 442 52% 46%

COLORADO RIVER PROJECT

Lake Mead 26,159 19,077 11,610 10,373 54% 40%

Lake Powell 24,322 16,720 11,818 8,844 53% 36%

Lake Mohave 1,810 1,676 1,708 1,691 101% 93%

Lake Havasu 648 559 543 574 103% 89%

EAST BAY MUNICIPAL UTILITY DISTRICT

Pardee Res 204 183 187 189 104% 93%

Camanche Reservoir 417 259 274 241 93% 58%

East Bay (4 res.) 159 133 128 116 88% 73%

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO

Hetch-Hetchy Reservoir 360 163 232 173 106% 48%

Cherry Lake 268 158 225 196 125% 73%

Lake Eleanor 29 14 18 24 181% 86%

South Bay/Peninsula (4 res.) 238 173 174 170 99% 71%

CITY OF LOS ANGELES (D.W.P.)

Lake Crowley 183 128 150 137 107% 75%

Grant Lake 48 28 27 23 82% 48%

Other Aqueduct Storage (6 res.) 238 173 174 170 99% 71%

13



TELEMETERED SNOW WATER EQUIVALENTS
April 1, 2021

(AVERAGES BASED ON PERIOD RECORD)
INCHES OF WATER EQUIVALENT

BASIN NAME
     STATION NAME ELEV

APRIL 1
AVERAGE Apr 1

PERCENT
OF AVERAGE

24 HRS
PREVIOUS

1 WEEK
PREVIOUS

TRINITY RIVER
Shimmy Lake 6400' 40.3 13.8 34.1 14.0 15.2
Crowder Flat 5100' - - - - -
Highland Lakes 6030' 29.9 21.3 71.2 21.7 23.3
Mumbo Basin 5650' 22.4 13.5 60.3 14.0 16.7
Bonanza King 6450' 40.5 23.0 56.9 23.3 24.0
Red Rock Mountain 6700' 39.6 27.1 68.5 27.5 28.5
Big Flat 5100' 15.8 22.6 142.8 22.7 22.4
Scott Mountain 5900' 16.0 11.6 72.8 11.8 13.2
Peterson Flat 7150' 29.2 18.8 64.5 19.2 19.8
Middle Boulder 3 6200' 28.3 19.2 67.8 19.7 20.7

SACRAMENTO RIVER
Blacks Mountain 7050' 12.7 10.2 80.3 10.6 11.4
Cedar Pass 7100' 18.1 15.8 87.3 16.0 16.4
Medicine Lake 6700' 32.6 21.6 66.3 21.8 22.6
Sand Flat 6750' 42.4 20.6 48.7 21.1 22.7
Slate Creek 5700' 29.0 17.2 59.2 17.6 18.4
Adin Mountain 6200' 13.6 11.1 81.6 11.6 14.3
Stouts Meadow 5400' 36.0 22.6 62.7 23.2 24.5
Snow Mountain 5950' 27.0 28.4 105.3 28.9 31.3

FEATHER RIVER
Kettle Rock 7300' 25.5 19.6 76.7 19.9 21.2
Gold Lake 6750' 36.5 30.0 82.2 30.0 29.9
Bucks Lake 5873' 44.7 - - - -
Harkness Flat 6200' 28.5 16.3 57.3 17.0 20.0
Four Trees 5202' 20.0 2.0 10.0 2.9 8.0
Humbug 6500' 28.0 28.9 103.3 29.0 29.2
Grizzly Ridge 6900' 29.7 17.0 57.4 17.3 19.4
Rattlesnake 6210' 14.0 10.6 75.4 11.4 15.4
Lower Lassen Peak 8338' - 51.9 - 51.8 52.0
Pilot Peak 6800' 52.6 27.5 52.3 27.9 29.3

EEL RIVER
Noel Spring 5100' - - - - -

YUBA & AMERICAN RIVERS
Carson Pass 8353' - 18.7 - 19.0 20.2
Lake Lois 8600' 39.5 - - - -
Forni Ridge 7600' 37.0 30.1 81.5 30.7 32.4
Silver Lake 7100' 22.7 18.9 83.1 19.5 21.7
Blue Canyon 5280' 9.0 8.0 88.4 8.9 12.3
Schneiders 8750' 34.5 - - - -
Meadow Lake 7200' 55.5 35.9 64.7 36.4 38.2
Robbs Powerhouse 5150' 5.2 - - - -
Robinson Cow Camp 6480' - 36.9 - 37.4 40.5
Cent Sierra Snow Lab 6900' 33.6 25.7 76.5 26.4 29.2
Caples Lake 8000' 30.9 21.9 70.8 22.1 23.2
Alpha 7600' 35.9 22.2 61.9 22.8 24.7
Robbs Saddle 5900' 21.4 14.9 69.4 15.5 17.4
Huysink 6600' 42.6 24.1 56.6 24.2 24.6
Van Vleck 6700' 35.9 28.5 79.2 29.0 32.1
Greek Store 5600' 21.0 19.1 90.9 19.6 21.2

MOKELUMNE & STANISLAUS RIVERS
Highland Meadow 8700' 47.9 29.2 61.0 29.5 29.5
Gianelli Meadow 8400' 55.5 28.2 50.8 28.3 28.6
Bloods Creek 7200' 35.5 22.0 61.9 22.2 23.4
Blue Lakes 8000' 33.1 21.3 64.4 21.3 21.0
Mud Lake 7900' 44.9 - - - -
Black Springs 6500' 32.0 20.3 63.4 20.4 20.6
Stanislaus Meadow 7750' 47.5 25.3 53.2 25.6 26.4
Deadman Creek 9250' 37.2 26.3 70.8 26.8 26.2
Lower Relief Valley 8100' 41.2 - - - -

TUOLUMNE & MERCED RIVERS
Dana Meadows 9800' 27.7 15.1 54.4 15.5 17.4
Horse Meadow 8400' 48.6 - - - -
Tuolumne Meadows 8600' 22.6 9.4 41.5 10.0 11.1
Slide Canyon 9200' 41.1 26.2 63.7 26.8 26.6
Ostrander Lake 8200' 34.8 26.0 74.6 26.4 27.6
Gin Flat 7050' 34.2 21.3 62.3 21.7 22.0
Tenaya Lake 8150' 33.1 18.0 54.4 18.3 19.7
White Wolf 7900' - 21.1 - 21.9 24.0
Lower Kibbie Ridge 6700' 27.4 8.9 32.3 9.5 11.1
Paradise Meadow 7650' 41.3 - - - -

14



SAN JOAQUIN RIVER
Volcanic Knob 10050' 30.1 14.7 48.9 14.6 14.2
Tamarack Summit 7550' 30.5 10.2 33.4 10.9 13.1
Kaiser Point 9200' 37.8 13.4 35.6 14.2 15.5
Huntington Lake 7000' 20.1 14.2 70.5 14.7 16.3
Green Mountain 7900' 30.8 3.5 11.4 4.4 8.3
Poison Ridge 6900' 28.9 16.9 58.4 17.7 21.2
Graveyard Meadow 6900' 18.8 11.5 61.3 12.2 13.9
Agnew Pass 9450' 32.3 - - - -
Devils Postpile 7569' - 8.6 - 9.2 11.3
Chilkoot Meadow 7150' 38.0 23.9 62.8 24.5 26.2

KINGS RIVER
Bishop Pass 11200' 34.0 - - - -
Blackcap Basin 10300' 34.3 13.9 40.4 13.9 15.4
Mitchell Meadow 9900' 32.9 16.8 51.2 16.6 16.4
Upper Burnt Corral 9700' 34.6 18.0 51.9 18.3 18.3
State Lakes 10300' 29.0 13.3 45.7 13.0 13.0
West Woodchuck Meadow 9100' 32.8 - - - -
Big Meadows 7600' 24.6 - - - 8.0
Charlotte Lake 10400' 27.5 - - - -

KAWEAH & TULE RIVERS
Farewell Gap 9500' 34.5 - - - -
Giant Forest 6650' 10.0 1.1 11.3 1.2 2.0
Quaking Aspen 7200' 21.0 1.2 5.8 1.6 3.6

KERN RIVER
Tunnel Guard Station 8900' 15.6 - - - -
Beach Meadows 7650' 11.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.6
Upper Tyndall Creek 11400' 27.7 9.9 35.6 9.9 10.0
Casa Vieja Meadows 8300' 20.9 6.6 31.4 7.0 8.5
Pascoes 9150' 24.9 11.2 44.9 11.4 11.3
Wet Meadows 8950' 30.3 8.0 26.3 9.0 10.6
Chagoopa Plateau 10300' 21.8 8.7 39.7 9.0 9.3
Crabtree Meadow 10700' 19.8 5.8 29.3 5.8 5.8

SURPRISE VALLEY AREA
Dismal Swamp 7050' 29.2 23.1 79.1 23.7 24.4

TRUCKEE RIVER
Independence Camp 7000' 21.8 12.7 58.3 13.3 15.8
Independence Lake 8450' 41.4 26.1 63.0 25.8 25.2
Squaw Valley Gold Coast 8200' 46.5 24.7 53.1 24.5 24.8
Truckee 2 6400' 14.3 10.5 73.4 11.1 13.6
Independence Creek 6500' 12.7 6.2 48.8 6.5 8.2
Big Meadows 8700' 25.7 13.5 52.5 13.8 14.6

LAKE TAHOE BASIN
Rubicon Peak 2 7500' 29.1 15.6 53.6 16.0 17.2
Tahoe City Cross 6750' 16.0 1.3 8.1 1.3 3.9
Echo Peak 5 7800' 39.5 29.8 75.4 30.2 32.2
Hagans Meadow 8000' 16.5 11.2 67.9 11.8 15.7
Fallen Leaf Lake 6250' 7.0 0.3 4.3 0.9 4.5
Ward Creek 3 6750' 39.4 30.0 76.1 30.3 32.2
Mount Rose Ski Area 8900' 38.5 23.2 60.3 23.4 23.8
Heavenly Valley 8800' 28.1 15.0 53.4 15.3 16.3
Marlette Lake 8000' 21.1 15.4 73.0 15.2 15.5

CARSON RIVER
Spratt Creek 6150' 4.5 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.6
Horse Meadow 8400' 48.6 - - - -
Burnside Lake 8129' - 16.2 - 16.5 17.1
Monitor Pass 8350' - 11.4 - 11.6 12.3
Poison Flat 7900' 16.2 16.6 102.5 16.6 16.7
Forestdale Creek 8017' - 22.9 - 23.2 23.8
Ebbetts Pass 8700' 38.8 26.2 67.5 26.5 26.6

WALKER RIVER
Sonora Pass Bridge 8750' 26.0 16.7 64.2 16.6 16.4
Virginia Lakes Ridge 9300' 20.3 10.6 52.2 10.7 10.4
Lobdell Lake 9200' 17.3 9.5 54.9 9.4 9.5
Summit Meadow 9313' - 14.6 - 14.7 14.3
Leavitt Meadows 7200' 8.0 4.7 58.8 4.9 6.1
Leavitt Lake 9600' - 36.0 - 36.1 36.0

OWENS RIVER/MONO LAKE
Cottonwood Lakes 10150' 11.6 6.5 56.0 6.7 7.9
Gem Pass 10750' 31.7 - - - -
Rock Creek Lakes 9700' 14.0 5.1 36.1 5.8 6.8
South Lake 9600' 16.0 7.4 46.3 7.5 8.0
Big Pine Creek 9800' 17.9 - - - -
Sawmill 10200' 19.4 8.2 42.3 8.1 7.9

NORMAL SNOWPACK ACCUMULATION EXPRESSED AS A PERCENT OF APRIL 1ST AVERAGE
AREA JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY
Central Valley North 45% 70% 90% 100% 75%
Central Valley South 45% 65% 85% 100% 80%
North Coast 40% 60% 85% 100% 80%

15



SNOWLINES

The 88th Annual Western Snow Conference will be held virtually on April 12-15, 2021. This year's theme is Bridging the
Gap between Research and Operations.

More information can be found at https://westernsnowconference.org/meeting/2021 

Depicted on this month's cover is a location near the headwaters of the South Fork of the American River on April 1,
2021. Statewide snowpack peaked during the last week of March.

16









CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

February 8th, 2022 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  MATHEW ROBERTS, WATER SYSTEM SUPERINTENDENT 

SUBJECT: JANUARY, MAINTENANCE REPORT 

Updates as of February 8th, 2022: 

• Currently, the Water System is running well.
• Water treated and sold came down slightly from December but within range for this

time of year.
• The South Fork River had low turbidity water, and we ran Both pumps.
• Jeff Davis's reservoir level is gaining, and water curtailments are still lifted.
• The Water plant MCC has been built and is scheduled to be installed on February 9th,

2022. This project was approved around July 2021.
• We had a few small water leaks and were expecting them to pick up the weather

temperature swings.

Respectfully Submitted, 

Mathew Roberts 

Superintendent   



Monthly Maintenance Report

January 2022

LOCATION DESCRIPTION OF WORK STATUS

Jeff Davis WTP Monthly operation and maintenance Complete

Routine water sampling and State reporting, WTP compliance Items Complete

Treated Water = 18,289,962 Complete

Sold Water =  13,367,808 gallons Complete

 Below Spill = 4.25' ongoing 

SolarBee Yearly Maintenance Complete

Motor Control Center (MMC) Replacement Pending

HAA5/TTHM DBP's (Quarterly) Complete

Warehouse Shop Routine Operation's Ongoing 

South Fork Pump Station Weekly routine checks Complete

Raw Water Pumped = 402 Acre ft ongoing

6" over Spill ( Both pumps Running) ongoing

Schaads Reservoir Weekly checks Complete

All Units are on Ongoing

32" Below Spill Ongoing

Glencoe Pump Station Weekly checks - routine monitoring Complete

Ponderosa PRV Hydro Weekly checks - routine monitoring Complete

MCV PRV Hydro Weekly checks - routine monitoring Complete

Complete

Garamendi's PRV Hydro Weekly checks - routine monitoring Complete

San Andreas Distribution Routine operations, sampling Complete

Service line leak repair (Market St) Complete

4" steel main line leak repair (Pope) Complete

Moke Hill Distribution Routine operations, sampling Complete

2" main line leak repair (Stevenson) Complete

Glencoe Distribution Routine operations Complete

Paloma Distribution Routine operations, sampling Complete

Rail Road Flat Distribution Routine operations, sampling Complete

Red Hawk Res.  Maintenance Ongoing 

Safety/Training Routine Safety/pre-const. Talks Ongoing

Spray Program Pre-Emergent Ongoing

 

Vehicle Maintenance Gold Toyota Service, Dump truck service = Brawners Auto Complete

Truck 9 & 10 service & recalls =Sonora Ford Complete

Other 341 USA tags completed Complete

24 Customer service/work orders Complete

Monthly meter reading Complete

Complaints-  0 Odor/ 0 Pressure Complete

 Total Pending service inquiries =3 Ongoing

Water Curtailment Updates (4 lifted) Ongoing



 

 

CALAVERAS PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 

 

February 3, 2022 

TO:  BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

FROM:  TRAVIS SMALL, GENERAL MANAGER 

SUBJECT: GENERAL MANAGER’s REPORT 

 

 

Updates as of February 3, 2022: 

• On February 1st and 3rd attended webinars for the Prop1 Round 2 Grant Funding 

(Backwash Reclaim Project).   

• Declined change order on Clear Well Tank Project that would have removed 6” more 

base and added 6” more sand at a cost of $30k.  Condor Earth Geotechnical Engineer 

agreed that declining change order was the right decision.   

• EBMUD reached out to discuss curtailments and the District’s willingness to join them 

and other regional stakeholders to push back against Executive Orders and newly 

created regulations as a result of the Executive Orders.  (Regulations and 

Curtailments that appear to circumvent normal processes from draft to 

implementation) EBMUD expects to have a draft letter for comment in mid-February. 

• Staff participated in presentations from the major water meter manufacturers, areas 

that staff is judging include the following:  Software, Reading Equipment, Scalability, 

and functionality.  The four presentations have been from Badger, Mueller, Neptune, 

and Sensus.  The District is moving to CUSI Billing Software and the current Meter 

Reading Software is not a scalable solution to new meter reading technologies which 

include drive-by radio reads or fixed data collectors. 

• Redhawk Dam Inundation Map is finalized, and Condor submitted to State for 

approval. 

  

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

  

Travis Small  

General Manager  


	1 - 2.8.22 Regular Meeting Agenda
	2 - 2022-5 AB 361 Subsequent Resolution re Remote Board of Directors Meetings acb rev
	3 - 1.11.22 Minutes (002) acb rev
	4 - 1.25.22 Special Meeting Minutes acb rev
	5 -Claim Summary January
	6 - Bill Payments
	7 - CPUD WR Comp and HydroGen Imp 012022
	Untitled

	8 - ACWA JPIA Awards
	8 - January board Memo
	9 - JAN-Maint Rpt 2022
	10 - February General Manager Memo

